
 

 
County Hall, New Road, Oxford, OX1 1ND 

www.oxfordshire.gov.uk  Fax: 01865 783195  Media Enquiries 01865 323870 
 

 
 
To: Members of the Audit & Governance Committee 

 

Notice of a Meeting of the Audit & Governance 
Committee 

 
Wednesday, 14 January 2015 at 2.00 pm in Meeting Room 2 

 
County Hall, Oxford, OX1 1ND 

 
 

 
Membership 

 
Chairman – Councillor David Wilmshurst 

Deputy Chairman - Councillor Sandy Lovatt 
 

Councillors 
 

Jamila Azad 
David Bartholomew 
Tim Hallchurch MBE 

 

Jenny Hannaby 
Nick Hards 

Simon Hoare 
 

Roz Smith 
 

 
Co-optee 
 
Dr Geoff Jones 
 
Notes: 
 
• Date of next meeting: 25 February 2015 
 

 
Peter G. Clark  
County Solicitor January 2015 
  
Contact Officers: Deborah Miller, Tel: (01865) 815384; E-Mail: 

deborah.miller@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
Andrea Newman, Tel: (01865) 810283; E-Mail: 
andrea.newman@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

Declarations of Interest 
 
The duty to declare….. 
Under the Localism Act 2011 it is a criminal offence to 
(a) fail to register a disclosable pecuniary interest within 28 days of election or co-option (or re-

election or re-appointment), or 
(b) provide false or misleading information on registration, or 
(c) participate in discussion or voting in a meeting on a matter in which the member or co-opted 

member has a disclosable pecuniary interest. 

Whose Interests must be included? 
The Act provides that the interests which must be notified are those of a member or co-opted 
member of the authority, or 
• those of a spouse or civil partner of the member or co-opted member; 
• those of a person with whom the member or co-opted member is living as husband/wife 
• those of a person with whom the member or co-opted member is living as if they were civil 

partners. 
(in each case where the member or co-opted member is aware that the other person has the 
interest). 

What if I remember that I have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the Meeting?. 
The Code requires that, at a meeting, where a member or co-opted member has a disclosable 
interest (of which they are aware) in any matter being considered, they disclose that interest to 
the meeting. The Council will continue to include an appropriate item on agendas for all 
meetings, to facilitate this. 

Although not explicitly required by the legislation or by the code, it is recommended that in the 
interests of transparency and for the benefit of all in attendance at the meeting (including 
members of the public) the nature as well as the existence of the interest is disclosed. 

A member or co-opted member who has disclosed a pecuniary interest at a meeting must not 
participate (or participate further) in any discussion of the matter; and must not participate in any 
vote or further vote taken; and must withdraw from the room. 

Members are asked to continue to pay regard to the following provisions in the code that “You 
must serve only the public interest and must never improperly confer an advantage or 
disadvantage on any person including yourself” or “You must not place yourself in situations 
where your honesty and integrity may be questioned…..”. 

Please seek advice from the Monitoring Officer prior to the meeting should you have any doubt 
about your approach. 

List of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests: 
Employment (includes“any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit 
or gain”.), Sponsorship, Contracts, Land, Licences, Corporate Tenancies, Securities. 

For a full list of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and further Guidance on this matter please see 
the Guide to the New Code of Conduct and Register of Interests at Members’ conduct guidelines. 
http://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/wps/wcm/connect/occ/Insite/Elected+members/ or contact 
Glenn Watson on (01865) 815270 or glenn.watson@oxfordshire.gov.uk for a hard copy of the 
document. 
 
 

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of 
these papers or special access facilities) please contact the officer 
named on the front page, but please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting. 



 

 

 

AGENDA 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  
 

2. Declaration of Interests - see guidance note  
 

3. Minutes (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 19 November 2014 (AG3) and to 
receive information arising from them. 

 

4. Petitions and Public Address  
 

5. Corporate Governance Leads - Presentations to Audit & Governance  
 

 2:10 
 
There are ten ‘Corporate Leads’ that provide assurance on an issue for governance 
purposes.  The Audit & Governance Committee has asked to be given presentations 
from each Corporate Lead during the year so that they can better understand each 
area, particularly focusing on the assurance process: 
 

• How Corporate Leads assure themselves (and then directors) that things are 
well within their areas; and 

• How Leads decide that issues need to be mentioned for ‘Action’; and 
• How leads ensure that their area complies with regulations and the law. 

 
Steve Munn, Chief Human Resources Officer, Sue Corrigan and Paul Lundy will give a 
presentation on Human Resources and Health & Safety and Martyn Ward, Service 
Manager ICT Business Delivery will give a presentation on ICT. Peter Clark, County 
Solicitor and Monitoring Officer will also give a presentation on Legislation. 

 

6. Treasury Management Strategy (Pages 7 - 42) 
 

 3:10 
 
Report by the Chief Finance Officer (AG5) 
 
The report contains the annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual 
Investment Strategy for 2015/16 in compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice.  The 
report sets out the borrowing and investment strategies for 2015/16 and relevant 
background information. 
 
When the report is considered by Cabinet on 27 January it will be 
RECOMMENDED to RECOMMEND to Council to:  



- 2 - 
 

 

 
(a) approve the Prudential Indicators for 2015/16, 2016/17 and 2017/18 as set 

out in Appendix A;  
 
(b) approve the Minimum Revenue Provision Policy for 2015/16 as set out in 

Appendix B;  
 
(c) approve the Treasury Management Strategy Statement & Annual 

Investment Strategy 2015/16;  
 
(d) approve the use of new instruments; 
 
(e) continue to delegate the authority to withdraw or advance additional funds 

to/from external fund managers to the TMST;  
 
(f) approve the continued delegation of changes required to the Annual 

Treasury Management Strategy Statement & Annual Investment Strategy to 
the Chief Finance Officer in consultation with the Leader of the Council 
and Cabinet Member for Finance;  

 
(g) approve the Draft Treasury Management Policy Statement as set out at 

Appendix E.  
 

7. Internal Audit Update, including  2014/15 Plan Progress Report (Pages 
43 - 66) 

 

 3:30 
 
The report presents the Internal Audit progress report for 2014/15 (AG7). 
 
The Committee is RECOMMENDED to: 
 
(a) approve the revised Internal Audit Plan; and 
(b) commission the Monitoring Officer to undertake the review of the 

Effectiveness of Internal Audit. 
 
 

8. AGS Actions Progress Report (Pages 67 - 78) 
 

 3:50 
 
Report by Head of Law & Governance (AG8). 
 
Audit & Governance Committee approved the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for 
2013/14 in July 2014.  The AGS lists six 'Actions' to be carried out in 2014/15.  This 
report is the SECOND of three during 2014/15 which will describe progress and any 
other plans that we have for each of these Actions.  
 
The Audit & Governance Committee is RECOMMENDED to note the progress on 
the AGS Actions. 



- 3 - 
 

 

 

9. Ernst & Young (Pages 79 - 90) 
 

 4:10  
 
A Local Government Audit briefing paper is attached. 
 
A representative of Ernst & Young will attend to give the Committee a verbal update on 
any work undertaken since the last meeting. 

 

10. Audit Work Group Report (Pages 91 - 94) 
 

 4:20 
 
Report by the Chief Internal Auditor (AG10). 
 
The report summarises the matters arising at the most recent meeting of the Audit 
Working Group (AWG). 
 
The Committee is RECOMMENDED to note the report. 

 

11. Committee Work Programme 2015 (Pages 95 - 96) 
 

 4:40 
 
To review/update the Committee’s Work Programme (AG11). 

 

CLOSE OF MEETING 

4:45 
 

 

 

Pre-Meeting Briefing  
There will be a pre-meeting briefing at County Hall on Thursday 8th January 2014 at 2.00 
pm for the Chairman, Deputy Chairman and Opposition Group Spokesman. 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES of the meeting held on Wednesday, 19 November 2014 commencing at 
1.00 pm and finishing at 4.00 pm. 
 
Present: 
 

 

Voting Members: Councillor David Wilmshurst – in the Chair 
 

 Councillor Sandy Lovatt (Deputy Chairman) 
Councillor Jamila Azad 
Councillor David Bartholomew 
Councillor Tim Hallchurch MBE 
Councillor Jenny Hannaby 
Councillor Nick Hards 
Councillor Simon Hoare 
 

  
By Invitation: 
 

Maria Grindley and Alan Witty (Ernst & Young). 

Officers: 
 

 

Whole of meeting Ian Dyson, chief Internal Auditor; Deborah Miller and 
Glenn Watson (Chief Executive’s Office). 
 

Part of meeting 
 

 

Agenda Item Officer Attending 
 
5,10 
6   
  

 
Peter Clark, County Solicitor & Monitoring Officer; 
Lorna Baxter, Chief Finance Officer and Greg Stacey 
Business Continuity & Resilience Officer; 
 

7    Lewis Gosling (Finance) 
8    Maria Grindley and Alan Witty (Ernst & Young) 
11    Glenn Watson (Chief Executive’s Office). 
 
The Committee considered the matters, reports and recommendations contained or 
referred to in the agenda for the meeting, together with [a schedule of addenda 
tabled at the meeting ][the following additional documents:] and decided as set out 
below.  Except as insofar as otherwise specified, the reasons for the decisions are 
contained in the agenda and reports [agenda, reports and schedule/additional 
documents], copies of which are attached to the signed Minutes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



 

54/14 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND TEMPORARY APPOINTMENTS  
(Agenda No. 1) 
 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Roz Smith (Councillor Richard 
Webber substituting). 
 

55/14 MINUTES  
(Agenda No. 3) 
 
The Minutes of the Meeting were approved and signed subject to ‘Alan Wittey’ being 
substituted with ‘Alan Witty’ throughout the Minutes. 
 

56/14 GOVERNANCE AND CONSTITUTION REVIEW  
(Agenda No. 5) 
 
In April 2013, the Council had adopted new governance arrangements which came 
into effect following the May 2013 elections.  The Council had asked its Monitoring 
Officer to review the effectiveness of those decision-making arrangements a year 
after their coming into operation, along with the underlying Constitution. His 
recommendations would be considered by Full Council on 9 December. 
 
The Committee previously gave attention to this matter in September 2014 but 
wished to have a more full discussion at this meeting. 
 
The Committee had before them a report (AG5) which highlighted the emerging 
issues. The Committee previously gave attention to this matter in September 2014 
but wished to have a more full discussion at this meeting. 
 
During debate, Members expressed concern over the proposed changes in relation of 
Transport Education Appeals on the grounds that they believed decisions of that 
nature should be taken be a democratically elected panel of members and not by 
officers who could be put under undue personal pressure. 
 
Peter Clark explained that this proposal had been put forward due to the practical 
difficulties of arranging members to sit on the appeals. In response, Members 
suggested that the pool of members for appeals could be expanded to allow officers 
more flexibility when arranging the appeals. 
 
RESOLVED: to endorse the direction of travel of the review subject to expressing 
strong reservations regarding officers taking stage 2 decisions on Transport 
Education Appeals.  
 

57/14 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE LEADS - PRESENTATIONS TO AUDIT & 
GOVERNANCE  
(Agenda No. 6) 
 
The Audit & Governance Committee had asked to be given presentations from each 
of the eleven Corporate Leads that provided assurance on an issue for governance 
purposes during the year so that they could better understand each area, particularly 
focusing on the assurance process: 
 

Page 2



 

• How Corporate Leads assure themselves (and then directors) that things are 
well within their areas; and 

• How Leads decide that issues need to be mentioned for ‘Action’; and 
• How leads ensure that their area complies with regulations and the law. 

 
Lorna Baxter, Chief Finance Officer gave a brief presentation on Assurance on 
Financial Management, outlining the systems, mechanisms and responsibilities in 
place to ensure internal control, including an annual statement of opinion on the 
effectiveness of systems and mechanisms, identifying actions to address weakness 
based on that opinion, or improvements required based on current organisational 
position and the monitoring and review of any actions required. 
 
In response to questions around financial controls, Mrs Baxter confirmed that all 
payments had to go through SAP which had detective controls and that although the 
6 top officers in the Council had the power to make payments; these also had to go 
through SAP. 
 
Greg Stacy, County Emergency Planning Officer then gave a brief presentation on 
Business Continuity & Resilience outlining the Council’s formal structures and 
processes to ensure business continuity arrangements were adequate and healthy 
including how officers identified issues for action and assured regulatory and legal 
compliance.  He further outlined the aspiration of the Emergency planning team to 
move to a holistic Business Continuity Management System for the whole 
organisation to improve coverage and integration. 
 
(Copies of both presentations are attached to the signed copy of the minutes and can 
be found on the Council Website www.oxfordshire.gov.uk). 
 
Following the presentations the Committee thanked the officers for their informative 
presentations. 
 

58/14 TREASURY MANAGEMENT MID TERM REVIEW 2014/15  
(Agenda No. 7) 
 
The Committee considered a report (AG7) which set out the Treasury Management 
activity undertaken in the first half of the financial year 2014/15 in compliance with the 
CIPFA Code of Practice, including Debt and Investment activity, Prudential Indicator 
monitoring, changes in Strategy, and forecast interest receivable and payable for the 
financial year. 
 
Lewis Gosling in introducing the report, stated that in the six months to 30 
September, the Council had achieved an average in-house return of 0.77%, falling 
slightly below the budgeted rate of 0.80%. This had produced gross interest 
receivable of £1.38 million for the period. 
 
The 2014/15 budget for interest receivable was £2.4 million, the forecast outturn of 
£2.5 million exceeded the budgeted figure by £0.1 million. This increased forecast 
was the result of higher average cash balances, due in part to the timing of capital 
and revenue expenditure.   
 

Page 3



 

He further reported that the Council continued to prioritise the security and liquidity of 
cash. All deposits with banks during the period remained restricted to a maximum 
duration of twelve months.  For the period no deposits over twelve months were 
made with other Local Authorities.   
 
The Council continued to use four pooled funds with variable net asset values. 
Weighted by value, the annualised return for all funds was 2.15% for the period. 
These funds are held with a long term view, with performance assessed accordingly.  
 
The report recommended that the 2014/15 Treasury Management Strategy was 
updated, to increase the limit on investments held in pooled funds from 20% to 30% 
of the total portfolio value. This would help ensure appropriate diversification and 
assist in moving away from reliance on unsecured bank and building society 
deposits. The increase would also continue to ensure pooled funds could be held on 
a long term basis, without the need to temporarily withdraw funds due to fluctuations 
in portfolio size.  
 
The performance and diversification of pooled funds would continue to be monitored 
by the Treasury Management Strategy Team. 
 
The Council’s debt financing position to date was shown in Annex 2. In line with the 
Strategy, no new debt had been arranged during the year.  
 
External debt decreased from £401.4m on 1st April 2014 to £400.4m on 30th 
September 2014, a net decrease of £1m. Interest payable was currently forecast to 
be in line with the budgeted figure of £18.2m.  
 
Investment benchmarking for quarter 1 undertaken by Arlingclose was shown in 
Annex 5.  The Council achieved higher than average interest on deposits to 30th June 
2014, which was achieved by placing deposits over a longer than average duration 
with institutions of a better than average credit quality. 
 
In response to questions and comments in relation to paragraphs 24 and 26 of the 
report around the reform to move away from government support for failing banks 
and building societies and the potential risks and impact on the Council’s borrowing, 
Lorna Baxter reported issues had been identified and that training by Arlingclose had 
been set up for members.  
 
RESOLVED: to note the report and to RECOMMEND Cabinet to note the Council’s 
Mid-Term Treasury Management Review 2014/15. 
 

59/14 ERNST & YOUNG - ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER  
(Agenda No. 8) 
 
The Committee had before them the Annual Audit letter for 2014/15 for Oxfordshire 
county Council and for Oxfordshire County Council Pension Fund (AG8).  The 
purpose of the Annual Audit Letter was to communicate to Members and external 
stakeholders, including members of the public, the key issues arising from Ernst & 
Young work. 
 

Page 4



 

Mr Witty, Ernst & Young outlined the key issues arising from the report as outlined in 
page 3 of the report, concluding that the report had identified no areas of significant 
concern or matters which Ernst & Young needed to bring to the Council’s attention. 
 
RESOLVED:  to consider and receive the Letter. 
 

60/14 AUDIT WORKING GROUP REPORT  
(Agenda No. 9) 
 
The Committee considered a report (AG9) which summarised the main business 
items arising at the most recent meeting of the Audit Working Group on 6 November 
which were as follows:  
 
Residential and Home support Payment Process 
Integrated Transport Unit 
Local Enterprise Partnership 
Procure to Pay process – Performance Targets 
Internal Audit Update 
 
The Audit & Governance Committee noted that in relation to the Residential and 
Home Support Payment Process staff would be receiving fraud training and a further 
update would be brought to the Committee in January. 
 
In response to questions around the procure to pay project, Mr Dyson acknowledged 
that it was important for members to be aware of the changes that had been put in 
place and that it was important that officers present the key financials and how they 
will be operated to the Committee. 
 
RESOLVED:  to note the report. 
 

61/14 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT - ACTION PLAN PROGRESS  
(Agenda No. 10) 
 
The Audit & Governance Committee had approved the Annual Governance 
Statement for 2013/14 in July 2014.  The Statement listed six 'Actions' to be carried 
out in 2014/15.  This Committee had before them a report (AG10) which was the first 
of three during 2014/15 which would describe progress and any other plans that 
officers had for each of the Actions outlined in the report.  
 
In relation to page 71 of the report, Mr Dyson undertook to provide Councillor 
Bartholomew with a detailed written answer on why 240 people had identified 
themselves as contract managers, but only 114 had validated for one of the contract 
management training events. 
 
RESOLVED: to note the progress on the Annual Governance Statement Actions. 
 
 
 
 

62/14 OPENNESS OF LOCAL BODIES REGULATIONS  
(Agenda No. 11) 

Page 5



 

 
The Government had introduced new Regulations to ensure that members of public 
were able to report on meetings of local government bodies. This effectively allowed 
the press and members of the public to film, photograph or record any Council 
meetings that are open to the public. The Regulations also required a written record 
to be kept, and reported, of certain decisions taken by officers. The Committee had 
before them a report (AG11) which summarised the main changes.  
 
A protocol had been produced by officers setting out how the rights to film, record 
and commentate on meetings will be implemented.  This Protocol on Filming, 
Recording and Use of Social Media at Council Meetings was attached as an Annex, 
which the Committee was asked to endorse. 
 
The Committee held a lengthy debate about the regulations and how they should be 
interpreted.  It was felt that the protocol set out in the Annex was too restricting and 
did not accurately reflect the essence of the new regulations. 
 
During debate, Councillor Hoare moved and Councillor Bartholomew seconded that 
the Committee note the changes brought about by the regulations, but reject the 
need for a protocol which is in any case not legally enforceable. 
 
The motion was put to the vote and it was: 
 
RESOLVED: (by 7 votes to 2) to note the changes brought about by the regulations, 
but reject the need for a protocol which is in any case not legally enforceable. 
 
 
 in the Chair 
  
Date of signing  2015 

Page 6



Division(s): N/A 

 
AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 14 JANUARY 2015 

 
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT AND ANNUAL 

INVESTMENT STRATEGY FOR 2015/16 
 

Report by the Chief Finance Officer 
 

 
  Introduction 

 
1. Treasury management is the management of the Council’s cashflows, its 

banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control 
of the risks associated with those activities and the pursuit of optimum 
performance consistent with those risks.  

 
2. The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to set out its treasury 

strategy for borrowing and to prepare an Annual Investment Strategy. The 
Annual Investment Strategy sets out the Council’s policies for managing its 
investments and for giving priority to the security and liquidity of those 
investments.  

 
3. The Council is also required to “have regard to” the Prudential Code and to 

set Prudential Indicators for the next three years to ensure that the Council’s 
capital investment plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable.  

 
4. The Audit & Governance Committee is responsible for scrutiny of the 

Treasury Management strategy and policies in advance of the report being 
approved by Cabinet then Council.  

 
5. The draft Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment 

Strategy for 2015/16 are set out within this report. The strategy sets out, 
amongst other things the investment strategy for the Council’s temporary 
cashflow surpluses. It also sets out the Council’s expectation for interest rates 
and highlights the uncertainties and risks in the forecasts.  

 
6. The prime objective of the Council’s investment strategy is to maintain capital 

security whilst ensuring the necessary liquidity to carry out its business and 
only once these have been satisfied should the return on the investment be 
considered. 

 
7. The prudential indicators can only be calculated once the capital programme 

is finalised. A draft programme will be considered by Cabinet on 27 January 
2014 and the indicators will be calculated in draft in time for that report and 
finalised for approval by Council on 17 February 2014.  

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 7



AG6 

Executive Summary 
 
8. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement complies with the 

requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, The Prudential Code for 
Capital Finance in Local Authorities (2011), the 2012 revisions to The 
Prudential Code, The Treasury Management Code of Practice (2011), the 
Department for Communities & Local Government Guidance on Local 
Authority Investments (2010), and incorporates the Annual Investment 
Strategy for 2015/16. 

 
9. The Council is required to approve Prudential Indicators for 2015/16, 2016/17 

and 2017/18. DRAFT Prudential Indicators are set out at Appendix A. These 
are currently INCOMPLETE as they are dependent upon updates to the 
Capital Programme but will be included in the Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement as an annex to the Service and Resource Planning Report to be 
approved by Council on 17 February 2015. 
 

10. The strategy for financing prudential borrowing during 2015/16 maintains the 
option to use temporary internal balances. It also includes the option to 
forward borrow on behalf of the Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership via 
the Public Works Loan Board or the money markets. 

 
11. The Annual Investment Strategy for 2015/16 is based on an average base 

rate of 0.625% and assumes an average return of 0.70%. The average cash 
balance for 2015/16 is forecast to be £300m, including externally managed 
funds. The list of proposed specified and non-specified investment 
instruments are set out in full in Appendices C and D respectively. The 
maximum maturity and duration limits for counterparties are currently 
determined by matrices based on Fitch credit ratings. The matrices proposed 
for 2015/16 and the full rationale for determining the credit worthiness of 
existing and potential counterparties is set out in paragraphs 85 to 100.  

 
12. The Council intends to continue to place funds in pooled funds with the 

external fund managers. Further details are given in the section on External 
Funds. 

 
13. The Council will continue to prioritise the security and liquidity of capital. The 

Council will aim to achieve investment returns that are commensurate with 
these priorities. To achieve this, the Treasury Management Strategy Team 
(TMST) will aim to maintain a balanced portfolio between longer term deposits 
with high credit quality counterparties and investments in liquid instruments 
and shorter term deposits with Money Market Funds (MMFs), local authorities 
and high credit quality financial institutions.  

 
14. Revisions to the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 

(CIPFA) Treasury Management Code of Practice in 2011 following the 
granting of the general power of competence to local authorities in the 
Localism Act 2011 require the Council to state its policy on the use 
derivatives. This is set out in Policy on Use of Financial Derivatives. 

 

Page 8



AG6 

 
15. The Council will continue to benchmark the performance of the Treasury 

Management function through membership of the CIPFA benchmarking club 
and the benchmarking undertaken by the Council’s Treasury advisor 
Arlingclose. In-house performance will also continue to be benchmarked 
against 3-month London Interbank Bid Rate (LIBID).  

 
16. The recommendations arising from the Treasury Management Strategy 

Statement and Annual Investment Strategy for 2015/16 are set out later in the 
report. 

 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement & Annual 
Investment Strategy for 2015/16 

 
Background 

 
17. The Local Government Act 2003 and supporting regulations require the 

Council to ‘have regard to’ the Prudential Code and to set Prudential 
Indicators for the next three years to ensure that the Council’s capital 
investment plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable.   

 
18. The Act requires the Council to set out its treasury strategy for borrowing and 

to prepare an Annual Investment Strategy (as required by Investment 
Guidance issued subsequent to the Act).  The Annual Investment Strategy 
sets out the Council’s policies for managing its investments and for giving 
priority to the security and liquidity of those investments. 

 
19. Treasury management is defined as: “The management of the local 

authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital 
market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those 
activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those 
risks.” 

 
20. The proposed strategy for 2015/16 in respect of the following aspects of the 

treasury management function is based upon the views of the Council’s 
Treasury Management Strategy Team (TMST)1, informed by market forecasts 
provided by the Council’s treasury advisor, Arlingclose Limited. The strategy 
covers: 

 
• Treasury limits in force which limit the treasury risk and activities of the 

Council; 
• Treasury Management Prudential Indicators for 2015/16, 2016/17 and 

2017/18; 
• the current treasury position; 
• prospects for interest rates; 
• the borrowing strategy; 

                                            
1Comprising the Chief Finance Officer, Service Manager - Pensions, Insurance and Money 
Management, Principal Financial Manager – Treasury & Pension Fund Investments, Financial 
Manager – Treasury Management, and Financial Manager – Pension Fund Investment.  

Page 9



AG6 

• the borrowing requirement and 
• the Annual Investment Strategy. 

 
21. It is a statutory requirement for the Council to produce a balanced budget and 

to calculate its council tax requirement for each financial year to include the 
revenue costs that flow from capital financing decisions.  This, therefore, 
means that increases in capital expenditure must be limited to a level whereby 
increases in charges to revenue caused by increased borrowing to finance 
additional capital expenditure, and any increases in running costs from new 
capital projects are limited to a level which is affordable within the projected 
income of the Council for the foreseeable future.     

 
22. The Council is also required to indicate if it has adopted the CIPFA Code of 

Practice on Treasury Management.  The code was adopted by Council on 1 
April 2003. All treasury activity will comply with relevant statute, guidance and 
accounting standards. 

 
Treasury Limits for 2015/16 to 2017/18 

 
23. It is a statutory duty, under section 3 (1) of the Local Government Act 2003, 

for the Council to determine and keep under review the amount it can afford to 
borrow.  This amount is termed the ‘Affordable Borrowing Limit’ and is 
equivalent to the ‘Authorised Borrowing Limit’ as specified in the Prudential 
Code.   

 
24. The Authorised Borrowing Limit requires the Council to ensure that total 

capital investment remains within sustainable limits and, in particular, that the 
impact upon future council tax levels is ‘acceptable’. 

 
25. Whilst termed an “Affordable Borrowing Limit” within the Act, the capital plans 

to be considered for inclusion incorporates financing by both external 
borrowing and other forms of liability, such as credit arrangements.  The 
Authorised Limit is to be set, on a rolling basis, for the forthcoming financial 
year and two successive financial years.  

 
Prudential Indicators for 2015/16 to 2017/18 

 
26. The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (2011) requires 

the Council to set and monitor against Prudential Indicators in the following 
categories: 

 
• Affordability 
• Prudence 
• Capital Expenditure 
• External Debt 
• Treasury Management 

 
Further Treasury Management indicators are specified in the Code of Practice 
on Treasury Management (2011). 

Page 10



AG6 

 
27. Prudential Indicators are set out in full at Appendix A to this strategy: 

 
i. Gross debt and the Capital Financing Requirement 
ii. Estimates of Capital Expenditure 
iii. Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream 
iv. Capital Financing Requirement 
v. Incremental Impact of Capital Investment decisions 
vi. Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary for External Debt 
vii. Actual External Debt 
viii. Adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services 

Code of Practice 
ix. Gross and net debt 
x. Upper and lower limits to maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing 
xi. Upper limits on fixed and variable rate interest exposures 
xii. Upper limit to total of principal sums invested longer than 364 days 

 
28. Prudential Indicators are reported to and monitored by the TMST on a regular 

basis and will be reported to the Audit & Governance Committee and Cabinet 
in the Treasury Management Outturn Report 2014/15 and the Treasury 
Management Mid-Term Review 2015/16, which will be considered in July and 
November 2015 respectively.   

 
Forecast Treasury Portfolio Position  

 
29. The Council’s treasury forecast portfolio position for the 2015/16 financial year 

comprises: 
 

 Principal  
£m 

Average Rate 
% 

Opening External Debt Balance 
  PWLB 
  Money Market Loans 
   

 
349.383 

50.000 
 

 
4.52% 
3.94% 

 
TOTAL EXTERNAL DEBT 399.383  
2015/16 Average Cash Balance 
Average In-House Cash   
Average Externally Managed 
  

 
230.000 

70.000 

 
 

TOTAL INVESTMENTS  300.000  
 
30. The average forecast cash balance is comprised of the following: 

 
 Average 

Balance £m 
  43.0 
Capital and Developer Contributions 117.5 
General Balances 16.5 
Cashflow and Working Capital Adjustments 107.8 

Page 11



AG6 

Provisions and Deferred Income 15.2 
TOTAL 300.0 

 
31. The cashflow and working capital adjustment average balance currently 

includes the impact of the front loading of grants received from central 
government departments. If the timing of grants moves away from the current 
profile, this would result in a decrease in the average balance. 

 
Prospects for Interest Rates 

 
Economic Background 

 
32. There is momentum in the UK economy, with a continued period of growth 

through domestically-driven activity and strong household consumption. There 
are signs that growth is becoming more balanced. The greater contribution 
from business investment should support continued, albeit slower, expansion 
of GDP. However, inflationary pressure is benign and is likely to remain low in 
the short-term. There have been large falls in unemployment but levels of 
part-time working, self-employment and underemployment are significant. 

 
33. Bank Rate has been maintained at 0.50% throughout the financial year. The 

Monetary Policy Committee's (MPC’s) focus is on both the degree of spare 
capacity in the economy and the rate at which this will be used up, factors 
prompting some debate on the Committee. Despite two Committee members 
having voted for a 0.25% increase in rates at each of the meetings from 
August 2014 onwards, some Committee members have become more 
concerned that the economic outlook is less optimistic than at the time of the 
August Inflation Report.  

 
34. The unemployment rate for August to October 2014 was 6.0% of the 

economically active population, down 0.2% from May to July 2014 and down 
1.4% from a year earlier. Inflationary pressure remains low, with CPI falling to 
1% in November 2014, easing pressure on the MPC to increase the Bank 
Rate.  

 
35. From August to October 2014 average total pay (including bonuses) rose by 

1.4% year-on-year. On a single month basis, average weekly earnings were 
1.8% higher in October 2014 year-on-year. Regular pay (excluding bonuses) 
rose by 1.6% in the three months to October 2014 compared to the previous 
year. On a single month basis, regular pay was 1.8% higher in October 2014 
year-on-year. The CPI rate was 1.3% in October 2014, suggesting that wages 
rose marginally in real terms. 

 
36. The transposition of two European Union directives into UK legislation in the 

coming months will place the burden of rescuing failing EU banks 
disproportionately onto unsecured local authority investors. The Bank 
Recovery and Resolution Directive promotes the interests of individual and 
small businesses covered by the Financial Services Compensation Scheme 
and similar European schemes, while the recast Deposit Guarantee Schemes 

Page 12



AG6 

Directive brings large companies into these schemes.  The combined effect of 
these two changes is to leave public authorities and financial organisations 
(including pension funds) as the only senior creditors likely to incur losses 
through a “bail-in” for a failing bank after July 2015. 

 
37. The continued global economic recovery has led to a general improvement in 

credit conditions since last year.  This is evidenced by a fall in the credit 
default swap spreads of banks and companies around the world. However, 
due to the above legislative changes, the credit risk associated with making 
unsecured bank deposits will increase relative to the risk of other investment 
options available to the Authority. 
 

 Current Medium Term Financial Plan 
 
38. The strategy for 2014/15 approved by Council in February 2014 set out 

forecast interest rates over the medium term. The forecast was for an average 
base rate of 
• 2014/15 0.50% 
• 2015/16 0.50% 
• 2016/17 0.75% 
• 2017/18 1.00%  

 
These interest rates were used as a basis for constructing the strategic 
measures budget for 2014/15 to 2017/18. 

 
Arlingclose’s View 

 
39. The Council uses the services of Arlingclose Limited to provide investment 

advice to the Council, as part of this service they help the Council to formulate 
a view on interest rates.   
 

40. Arlingclose forecast the first rise in official interest rates in August 2015 and a 
gradual pace of increases thereafter, with the average for 2015/16 being 
around 0.75%. 

 
41. Arlingclose project a slow rise in Bank Rate. The pace of interest rate rises 

will be gradual and the extent of rises limited; with a forecast rate of 1.75% for 
March 2018. 

 
42. Arlingclose also provide upside (rates being higher) and downside risks (rates 

being lower) to their forecast. The upside risk given for base rate ranges from 
0.25% in June 2015 to 0.50% in March 2018. Downside risks range from zero 
in June 2015 to 1.00% in March 2018. On the downside, Eurozone weakness 
and the threat of deflation have increased the risks to the durability of UK 
growth. If the negative indicators from the Eurozone become more 
entrenched, the Bank of England will likely defer rate rises to later in the year. 

Page 13



AG6 

43. Arlingclose expect the 1 year LIBID2 rate to rise from 1.05% to 2.50% over the 
same period, indicating that short-term borrowing will become more 
expensive.2 

 
Treasury Management Strategy Team’s View 

 
44. The Council’s TMST, taking into account the advice from Arlingclose, and the 

current economic outlook, have determined the rates to be included in the 
Strategic Measures budget for 2015/16 and over the medium term. The Bank 
Rate forecasts set out below represent the average rate for the financial year: 

 
• 2015/16 0.625% 
• 2016/17 1.125%  
• 2017/18 1.625% 
• 2018/19 2.125% 

 
45. The TMST team has agreed that based on the current portfolio of deposits 

and market rates, the target return rate should be 0.70% in 2015/16, reducing 
to the forecast average base rate for 2016/17 to 2018/19. The reason for the 
reducing margin above base rate is that the portfolio includes some longer-
term deposits which were arranged in previous financial years, when market 
rates for longer-term loans were higher than those currently available with 
similar counterparties. As existing long-term deposits arranged with higher 
rates mature, the average portfolio rate will continue to reduce. Additionally 
there is considerable uncertainty about the effects that the EU banking 
directives will have on the Council’s ability to secure returns above base rate. 
This being a result of the need to find more secure investment opportunities 
and the limiting effect this may have on the availability of suitable instruments 
and counterparties. These rates have been incorporated into the strategic 
measures budget estimates: 

  
• 2015/16 0.700%  
• 2016/17 1.125%  
• 2017/18 1.625% 
• 2018/19 2.125% 

 
Borrowing Strategy 
 
Arlingclose’s View 

 
46. The Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) sets new borrowing rates at the gilt 

yield plus 1.00%.   Arlingclose have forecast gilt yields as follows: 
 

• The 50 year gilt yield is expected to start the financial year at 3.05%, 
increasing gradually to 3.60% by March 2018.  

                                            
2 LIBID is the London Interbank Bid Rate which represents the rate at which a bank is willing to 
borrow from other banks. 

Page 14



AG6 

• The 20 year gilt yield is expected to start the financial year at 2.95% 
rising to 3.55% by the end of the forecast in March 2018.    

• The 10 year gilt yield is expected to start the financial year at 2.45%, 
rising to 3.05% by March 2018. 

• The 5 year gilt yield is expected to start the financial year at 1.75% and 
to reach 2.90% by March 2018.  
 

47. Arlingclose’s forecasts have an upside variation range of between 35 and 55 
basis points, and a downside variation range of between 35 and 70 basis 
points depending on the economic and political climate. 

 
Treasury Management Strategy Team’s View 

 
48. It is expected that the Bank Rate will remain low during 2015/16 and that 

there will continue to be a high “cost of carry3” associated with the long term 
borrowing compared to temporary investment returns. The TMST will continue 
to monitor the Council’s debt portfolio and will consider debt repayment if it is 
in the Council’s interest. 

  
49. In April 2011 the Government replaced the ‘credit approval’ system for capital 

financing with direct provision of capital resources in the form of capital grant. 
This means that the Council only needs to borrow to finance prudential 
borrowing schemes.  The Council’s Capital Financing Strategy applies capital 
grants, developer contributions, capital receipts and revenue contributions to 
fund capital expenditure before using prudential borrowing.  This means that 
the majority of the current capital programme is fully funded without the need 
to take up any new borrowing. 
 

50. Financing the Council’s borrowing requirement internally would reduce the 
cost of carry in the short term but there is a risk that the internal borrowing 
would need to be refinanced with external borrowing at a time when PWLB 
and market rates exceed those currently available.  This could result in higher 
financing costs over the long term. 
 

51. Internal borrowing is a short term financing solution as cash surpluses are 
temporary balances made up of creditors over debtors, earmarked reserves 
and capital reserves.  As reserves are drawn down for their earmarked 
purpose internal borrowing will need to be replaced with external borrowing.   

 
52. The Council’s TMST have agreed that they should continue to have the option 

to fund new or replacement borrowing up to the value of 25% of the portfolio 
through internal borrowing. This will have the effect of reducing some of the 
“cost of carry” of funding. Internal borrowing will also be used to finance 
prudential schemes. 

 
53. If market conditions change during the 2015/16 financial year such that the 

policy to borrow internally is no longer in the short term or long term interests 

                                            
3 The difference between the interest payable on borrowing on debt and the interest receivable from 
investing surplus cash. 

Page 15



AG6 

of the Council, the TMST will review the borrowing strategy and report any 
changes to Cabinet. 

 
54. As the Accountable Body for Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership 

(OxLEP), the Council will be required to prudentially borrow £36.5m on behalf 
of OxLEP for project funding from 2015/16 onwards. The loans will be repaid 
through the retained business rates of OxLEP. This represents projects to be 
delivered by the Council. The TMST monitor PWLB rates and will consider 
forward borrowing on behalf of OxLEP in 2015/16 if it is determined to be 
cost-effective. This is consistent with the expectation that interest rates and 
Gilt yields will begin to rise over the period. 

 
55. As part of the Local Growth Fund bids OxLEP are able to apply for the Public 

Works Loan Board (PWLB) project rate, at 40 basis points below the standard 
rate across all loan types and maturities. This discounted borrowing is 
available to support strategic local capital investment projects. This aims to 
give LEPs, in consultation with LAs, the power to prioritise the projects that 
best support shared local goals. Qualification is dependent on government 
acceptance of a business case from OxLEP, agreed with the Council, setting 
out borrowing requirements for projects. 

 
56. For 2015/16 OxLEP have applied for £20m of borrowing at the project rate 

discount. This does not constrain access to borrowing at the standard or 
certainty rates (see below), nor is OCC compelled to borrow up to the full 
amount. The project rate must not be used to displace or refinance existing 
borrowing. 

 
57. The Council’s chief objective when borrowing money is to strike an 

appropriate balance between securing low interest costs and achieving cost 
certainty over the period for which funds are required.  The flexibility to 
renegotiate loans should the Authority’s long-term plans change is a 
secondary objective. 
 

58. The approved sources of long-term and short-term borrowing are: 
 

• Public Works Loan Board 
• UK local authorities 
• any institution approved for investments (see below) 
• any other bank or building society authorised by the Prudential 

Regulation Authority to operate in the UK 
• UK public and private sector pension funds  
• capital market bond investors 
• special purpose companies created to enable joint local authority bond 

issues. 
 

 Borrowing for the Capital Financing Requirement 
 
59. The Council’s Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) represents the Council’s 

underlying need to finance capital expenditure by borrowing.  The CFR is the 

Page 16



AG6 

value of the Council’s assets that have not been permanently financed, in 
other words, borrowing has been used to finance spending.  When capital 
expenditure is financed by grants, capital receipts or direct contributions from 
revenue this is not included the CFR.   
 

60. The Council is required to make an annual contribution from revenue towards 
the repayment of debt termed the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP).  This 
contribution reduces the CFR and effectively provides the resource to 
permanently finance the capital expenditure and reduce the Council’s 
borrowing requirement by that amount.  The Council’s MRP Policy Statement 
sets out the methodology that the Council applies in its MRP calculation. The 
statement is agreed by Council each year in February alongside the budget 
and capital programme and is included at Appendix B.  Cabinet is 
recommended to recommend to Council to approve the policy. 

   
61. Under the Prudential Code, the Council must ensure that gross external 

borrowing does not, except in the short term, exceed the sum of the CFR in 
the previous year plus estimates of any increases to the CFR for the current 
and next two financial years.  Where the gross debt is greater than the CFR 
the reasons for this should be clearly stated in the annual treasury 
management strategy.  The Council’s current position is set out below.  
 

62. The Council’s CFR is currently forecast to increase over the medium term 
financial plan.  This is a result of the requirement to borrow on behalf of the 
Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership discussed in paragraph 54. 

 
63. The Council’s external debt is also forecast to increase over the medium term 

financial plan as new external borrowing required for OxLEP projects is 
forecast to exceed the rate at which existing long term debt is repaid upon 
maturity. 

 
64. The Council’s external debt is forecast to exceed the CFR in 2015/16. The 

period for which external debt will exceed CFR will be dependent on the 
timing of new borrowing for OxLEP projects. There is a likelihood that forward 
borrowing will be undertaken based on the forecast that interest rates on new 
debt will increase over the period. However the timing of which will be 
dependent on the TMST monitoring the situation and determining what is 
deemed most cost-effective. 

 
 Borrowing Instruments 

 
65. The TMST’s forecast for the period 2015/16 – 2018/19 for 20 and 50 year 

PWLB rates over the medium term are an average rate of 4.10% and 4.20%  
per year respectively.   

 
66. In November 2012 the PWLB introduced the Certainty Rate which allows 

eligible Councils to borrow at a discounted rate of 0.20% below the advertised 
borrowing rate.  Eligibility is established by the submission of an annual 
application form to the Department of Communities and Local Government.  

Page 17



AG6 

The Council has successfully applied and qualified for the rate for the period 
from 1 November 2014 to 31 October 2015.   
 

67. An annual application will be made to renew eligibility for the Certainty Rate, 
in order to maintain the option should it be required.   

 
68. The Council has historically set a maximum limit of 20% of the debt portfolio 

to be borrowed in the form of Lender’s Option Borrower’s Option (LOBOs).  It 
is recommended that this remain as the limit for 2015/16. As at 30 November 
2014, LOBOs represent 12.49% of the total external debt. 

 
69. The Council has five £5m LOBO’s with call options in 2015/16. Three of which 

have two call options in year, whilst two have a single call option. At each call 
date the lender may choose to exercise their option to change the interest rate 
payable on the loan.  If the lender chooses to do so, the Council will evaluate 
alternative financing options before deciding whether or not to exercise the 
borrower’s option to repay the loan or to accept the new rate offered.  It is 
likely that if the rate is changed the debt will be repaid. 

 
Annual Investment Strategy 

 
70. The Council has regard to the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister’s Guidance 

on Local Government Investments (“the Guidance”) issued in March 2004 and 
CIPFA’s Treasury Management in Public Services Code of Practice and 
Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes (“the CIPFA TM Code”). It also has regard to 
the subsequent Communities and Local Government update to the 
Investment Guidance, Capital Finance Regulations and Minimum Revenue 
Provision Guidance issued in April 2010. The Council’s investment priorities 
are:- 

 
• The security of capital and 
• The liquidity of its investments 

 
71. The Council also aims to achieve the optimum return on its investments 

commensurate with proper levels of security and liquidity.  The borrowing of 
monies purely to invest or on-lend and make a return is unlawful and the 
Council will not engage in such activity. 

 
72. The Treasury Management Code of Practice requires the Council to approve 

a Treasury Management Policy Statement.  Good practice requires that this 
statement is regularly reviewed and revised as appropriate.  The Treasury 
Management Policy Statement is included at Appendix E.  Cabinet is 
recommended to recommend Council to approve the Treasury Management 
Policy Statement. 

 
 Investment Instruments 

 
73. Investment instruments identified for use in the 2015/16 financial year are set 

out at Appendices C and D under the ‘Specified’ and ‘Non-Specified’ 
Investment categories.  

Page 18



AG6 

 
74. Guidance states that specified investments are those requiring “minimal 

procedural formalities”.  The placing of cash on deposit with banks and 
building societies ‘awarded high credit ratings by a credit rating agency’, the 
use of AAA rated Money Market Funds (MMFs) and investments with the UK 
Government and local authorities qualify as falling under this phrase as they 
form a normal part of day to day treasury management. 

 
75. Money market funds (MMFs) will be utilised, but good treasury management 

practice prevails and whilst MMFs provide good diversification the council will 
also seek to diversify any exposure by using more than one MMF where 
practical.  It should be noted that while exposure will be limited, the use of 
MMFs does give the council exposure to institutions that may not be included 
on the approved lending list for direct deposits.  This is deemed to be an 
acceptable risk due to the benefits of diversification. The Treasury team use 
an online portal to provide details of underlying holdings in MMFs. This 
enables more effective and regular monitoring of full counterparty risk.  

 
76. All specified investments will be sterling denominated, with maturities up to a 

maximum of 1 year, meeting the ‘high’ credit rating criteria where applicable. 
 

77. Non specified investment products are those which take on greater risk.  They 
are subject to greater scrutiny and should therefore be subject to more 
rigorous justification and agreement of their use in the Annual Investment 
Strategy; this applies regardless of whether they are under one year 
investments and have high credit ratings. 
 

78. A maximum of 50% of the portfolio will be held in non-specified investments. 
 
New Instruments  

 
Secured  

 
79. Secured investments are secured on the counterparty’s assets. They are 

exempt from bail-in and will limit the potential for losses in the event of 
insolvency.  Secured investments include reverse repurchase agreements 
and covered bonds. Where there is no investment specific credit rating, but 
the collateral upon which the investment is secured has a credit rating, the 
highest of the collateral credit rating and the counterparty credit rating will be 
used to determine cash and time limits. The combined secured and 
unsecured investments in any one bank will not exceed the cash limit for un-
secured investments. 

 
Reverse Repurchase Agreements (Reverse repos)   

80. A reverse repo is an agreement whereby an investor purchases the legal title 
to bonds or other investment securities from a bank, with an agreement to sell 
them back for a higher amount on a future date. The difference between the 
purchase and sale price representing the investor’s return on the investment. 
The value of the collateral is maintained by the bank at an agreed percentage 
above the re-sale amount. Reverse repos have a dual benefit for the investor, 

Page 19



AG6 

exemption from bail-in and the retention of the collateral, which can be 
immediately sold in the case of insolvency.  

 
81. On a practical accounting basis reverse repos operate similarly to existing 

term deposits due to the substance of the agreement. The investment is 
classed as an asset by the investor, but the collateral remains as an asset on 
the bank’s balance sheet. Subsequently, reverse repos have the potential to 
be used as an alternative to unsecured term-deposits. It is recommended that 
the responsibility for determining lending limits based on suitable credit quality 
for counterparties and collateral, as well as levels of collateral, be delegated 
to the TMST. 

 
Covered Bonds 

82. Covered bonds are issued by a bank or building society, and guaranteed by a 
group company that holds mortgage assets. The process is overseen by a 
trustee, acting in the best interests of the investors. Covered bonds are 
exempt from bail-in, but in the event of insolvency the investor has a claim 
against the counterparty’s asset along with unsecured creditors. Any shortfall 
on the claim is made up by a guarantor, which is a secured creditor of the 
bank. 

 
Registered Providers  

 
83. Loans and bonds issued by, guaranteed by or secured on the assets of 

Registered Providers of Social Housing, formerly known as Housing 
Associations.  These bodies are tightly regulated by the Homes and 
Communities Agency and, as providers of public services; they retain a high 
likelihood of receiving government support if needed.  It is recommended that 
the responsibility for determining counterparty limits be delegated to the 
TMST. This will not fall below the minimum credit rating allowable for term 
deposits  
(Fitch: A-). 

 
84. On 27 January 2015, Cabinet will be recommended to recommend Council to 

approve the use of instruments covered in paragraphs 80 to 83. 
 
 Credit Quality 
 

85. The updated CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management (2011) 
recommends that Councils have regard to the ratings issued by the three 
major credit rating agencies (Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s) and to 
make decisions based on all ratings.   

 
86. Whilst the Council will have regard to the ratings provided by all three ratings 

agencies, the Council uses Fitch ratings as the basis by which to set its 
minimum credit criteria for deposits and to derive its maximum counterparty 
limits. Counterparty limits and maturity limits are derived from the credit rating 
matrix as set out in the tables at paragraphs 97 and 98 respectively.   

 

Page 20



AG6 

87. The TMST may further reduce the derived limits due to the ratings provided 
by Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s or as a result of monitoring additional 
indicators such as Credit Default Swap rates, share prices, Ratings Watch & 
Outlook notices from credit rating agencies and quality Financial Media 
sources.  

 
88. Notification of any rating changes (or ratings watch and outlook notifications) 

by all three ratings agencies are monitored daily by a member of the Treasury 
Management Team. Updates are also provided by the Council’s Treasury 
Management advisors Arlingclose and reported to TMST.   

 
89. Where a change in the Fitch credit rating places a counterparty on the 

approved lending list outside the credit matrix (as set out in tables at 
paragraphs 97 and 98), that counterparty will be immediately removed from 
the lending list. 

 
90. Where a counter party has been placed on Negative Watch or Outlook by any 

of three major credit rating agencies the counterparty’s status on the 
approved lending list will be reviewed by the TMST and appropriate action 
taken. 
 

91. The Authority defines “high credit quality” organisations as those having a 
credit rating of A- or higher that are domiciled in the UK or a foreign country 
with a sovereign rating of AA+ or higher with the Fitch ratings agency. 
 
 Liquidity Management 
 

92. The Council has developed a cash flow forecast which is used to determine 
the maximum period for which funds may prudently be committed.  The 
forecast is compiled on a pessimistic basis, with receipts under-estimated and 
payments over-estimated to minimise the risk of the Council being forced to 
borrow on unfavourable terms to meet its financial commitments. Limits on 
long-term investments are set by reference to the Council’s medium term 
financial plan and cash flow forecast. The Council uses instant access bank 
deposit accounts and money market funds for balances forecast to be 
required at short notice to meet commitments due. Interest rates on some 
instant access accounts have fallen in 2014/15. The TMST will continue to 
monitor options available to maintain the required liquidity, and will open new 
accounts with approved counterparties as appropriate. 

 
 Lending Limits 
 

93. In addition to the limits determined by the credit quality of institutions, the 
TMST apply further limits to mitigate risk by diversification.  These include: 

 
• Limiting the amount lent to banks in any one country (excluding the 

UK) to a maximum of 20% of the investment portfolio. 
• Limiting the amount lent to any bank, or banks within the same group 

structure to 10% of the investment portfolio. 

Page 21



AG6 

 
94. Where the Council has deposits on instant access, this balance may 

temporarily exceed the 10% bank or group limit. However the limits as set out 
in paragraphs 97 and 98 will still apply. 

 
95. Counterparty limits as set out in paragraphs 97 and 98, may be temporarily 

exceeded by the accrual and application of interest amounts onto accounts 
such as call accounts and money market funds. Where the application of 
interest causes the balance with a counterparty to exceed the agreed limits, 
the balance will be reduced when appropriate, dependent upon the terms and 
conditions of the account and cashflow forecast.   

 
96. Any changes to the approved lending list will be reported to Cabinet as part of 

the Financial Monitoring and Business Strategy Delivery Report.   
 
97. The Council also manages its credit risk by setting counterparty limits. The 

matrix below sets out the maximum proposed limits for 2015/16.  The TMST 
may further restrict lending limits dependent upon prevailing market 
conditions. BBB+ to BBB- ratings has been added for overnight balances with 
the Council’s bank, currently Lloyds Bank Plc. This is for practical purposes 
should the bank be downgraded in response to the removal of government 
support. 

 
LENDING LIMITS - Fitch Rating Short Term Rating 
Long Term Rating F1+ F1 
AAA £30m £20m 
AA+ £30m £20m 
AA £25m £15m 
AA- £25m £15m 
A+ £20m £15m 
A £20m £15m 
A- £15m £10m 
BBB+,  BBB,  BBB- (bank with which the Council 
has its bank account) 

£20m £20m 

 
 

98. The Council also manages its counterparty risk by setting maturity limits on 
deposits, restricting longer term lending to the very highest rated 
counterparties. The table below sets out the maximum approved limits. The 
TMST may further restrict lending criteria in response to changing market 
conditions. 

 
MATURITY LIMITS – Fitch Rating Short Term Rating 
Long Term Rating F1+ F1 
AAA 3 years 364 days 
AA+ 2 years 364 days 
AA 2 years 9 months 
AA- 2 years 9 months 

Page 22



AG6 

A+ 364 days 9 months 
A 9 months 6 months 
A- 6 months 3 months 
BBB+,  BBB,  BBB- (bank with which the 
Council has its bank account) 

Overnight Overnight 

 
 
Other institutions included on the councils lending list 

 
99. In addition to highly credit rated banks and building societies the authority 

may also place deposits with:- 
§ AAA rated Money Market funds,  
§ Collective Investment Schemes  
§ Local authorities.   

 
Structured Products 
 

100. As at 30 November 2014, the Council had £5m of structured products within 
its investment portfolio. Structured products involve varying degrees of 
additional risk over fixed rate deposits, with the potential for higher returns.  It 
is recommended that the authority continue to use structured products up to a 
maximum of 10% of the investment portfolio.  The Council will continue to 
monitor structured products and consider restructuring opportunities as 
appropriate. 

 
External Funds  

 
101. As at 30 November 2014, the Council had £61.5m invested in external funds 

(excluding MMFs). These funds have a variable net asset value which means 
that the value of the funds can decrease as well as increase depending on the 
performance of the instruments in the fund. 

 
102. The Council uses external fund managers and pooled funds to diversify the 

investment portfolio through the use of different investment instruments, 
investment in different markets, and exposure to a range of counterparties.  It 
is expected that these funds should outperform the Council’s in-house 
investment performance over a rolling three year period.  The Council will 
have no more than 50% of the total portfolio (currently around £150m) 
invested with external fund managers and pooled funds (excluding MMFs). 
This allows the Council to achieve diversification while limiting the exposure to 
funds with a variable net asset value.   

 
103. In order to ensure appropriate diversification within externally managed and 

pooled funds these should be diversified between a minimum of two asset 
classes. 

 
104. The performance of the pooled funds is monitored by the TMST throughout 

the year against the funds’ benchmarks and the in-house investment returns.   
 

Page 23



AG6 

105. The TMST will keep the external fund investments under review and consider 
alternative instruments and fund structures, to manage overall portfolio risk.  It 
is recommended that authority to withdraw, or advance additional funds 
to/from external fund managers, continue to be delegated to the TMST.  

 
Investment Approach 
 

106. Given the increasing risk for short-term bank and building society deposits as 
a result of the Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive, the Authority aims to 
diversify into more secure asset classes during 2015/16.  

 
107. The weighted average maturity (WAM) of in-house deposits as at 30 

November 2014 was 177 days. This is made up of £35.9m of instant access 
balances with a maturity of 1 day, and £288m of deposits with a WAM of 199 
days.  

 
108. The in-house WAM has decreased from 283 days, reported on 30 November 

2013. The shorter WAM is in part a result of a reduction in durations for bank 
and building society limits on the Council’s lending list. The shorter WAM will 
however provide a greater degree of flexibility in securing investment returns 
in an interest rate environment that is forecast to move upward. This signals a 
move away from the need to lock in to long term investment returns in an 
environment of falling or stagnating interest rates.  

 
109. With the prospect of a rise in interest rates, the TMST will aim to maintain the 

balance between longer-term deposits with local authorities and short-term 
secured and unsecured deposits with high credit quality financial institutions. 
Money Market Funds will continue to be utilised for instant access cash.  This 
approach will maintain a degree of certainty about the investment returns for a 
proportion of the portfolio, as well while also enabling the Treasury 
Management team to respond to any increases in interest rates in the short-
term.   

 
110. The Council maintain the option to invest directly in UK Government Gilts, T-

bills, Certificates of Deposits and other Sovereign Bonds, use of such 
instruments remains dependent upon custody arrangements. If availability of 
acceptable credit worthy institutions is reduced, the Council may use the Debt 
Management Office Deposit Facility and will continue to prioritise security and 
liquidity of assets over investment returns. 
 

111. Given the on-going upheaval in the banking sector, it is proposed that any 
further changes required to the Annual Treasury Management Strategy & 
Annual Investment Strategy, continue to be delegated to the Chief Finance 
Officer in consultation with the Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for 
Finance. 

 
Policy on Use of Financial Derivatives 

 

Page 24



AG6 

112. Local authorities have previously made use of financial derivatives embedded 
into loans and investments both to reduce interest rate risk (e.g. interest rate 
collars and forward deals) and to reduce costs or increase income at the 
expense of greater risk (e.g. LOBO loans and callable deposits).  The general 
power of competence in Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 removes much of 
the uncertainty over local authorities’ use of standalone financial derivatives 
(i.e. those that are not embedded into a loan or investment). The CIPFA Code 
(2011) requires authorities to clearly detail their policy on the use of 
derivatives in the annual strategy. 

 
113. The Council will only use standalone financial derivatives (such as swaps, 

forwards, futures and options) where they can be clearly demonstrated to 
reduce the overall level of the financial risks that the Council is exposed to. 
Additional risks presented, such as credit exposure to derivative 
counterparties, will be taken into account when determining the overall level of 
risk. Embedded derivatives will not be subject to this policy, although the risks 
they present will be managed in line with the overall treasury risk 
management strategy. 

 
114. Financial derivative transactions may be arranged with any organisation that 

meets the approved investment criteria. The current value of any amount due 
from a derivative counterparty will count against the counterparty credit limit 
and the relevant foreign country limit. 

 
115. It is the view of the TMST that the use of standalone financial derivatives will 

not be required for Treasury Management purposes during 2015/16.  The 
Council will only use derivatives after seeking expertise, a legal opinion and 
ensuring officers have the appropriate training for their use. 
 
Performance Monitoring 

 
116. The Council will monitor its Treasury Management performance against other 

authorities through its membership of the CIPFA Treasury Management 
benchmarking club.    

 
117. Arlingclose benchmark the performance of their clients against each other on 

a quarterly basis, looking at a variety of indicators including investment risk 
and returns.  

 
118. The Council will benchmark its internal return against 3 month LIBID. 

 
119. Latest performance figures will be reported to the Audit & Governance 

Committee and Cabinet in the Treasury Management Outturn Report 
2014/15, and the Treasury Management Mid-Term Review 2015/16, which 
will be considered in July and November 2015 respectively.   

 
Investment Training 

 
120. All members of the Treasury Management Strategy Team are members of a 

professional accounting body.  In addition, key Treasury Management officers 

Page 25



AG6 

receive in-house and externally provided training as deemed appropriate and 
training needs are regularly reviewed, including as part of the staff appraisal 
process.  

 
Treasury Management Advisors 

 
121. Arlingclose continue to provide the Council’s Treasury Management Advisory 

Service, following the award of a three year contract via a competitive 
procurement process in May 2013. Under the contract the Council will receive 
specific advice on investment, debt and capital finance issues. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

122. When the report is considered by Cabinet on 27 January it will be 
RECOMMENDED to RECOMMEND to Council to:  
 
(a) approve the Prudential Indicators for 2015/16, 2016/17 and 2017/18 

as set out in Appendix A;  
 
(b) approve the Minimum Revenue Provision Policy for 2015/16 as set 

out in Appendix B;  
 
(c) approve the Treasury Management Strategy Statement & Annual 

Investment Strategy 2015/16;  
 
(d) approve the use of new instruments; 

 
(e) continue to delegate the authority to withdraw or advance 

additional funds to/from external fund managers to the TMST;  
 
(f) approve the continued delegation of changes required to the 

Annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement & Annual 
Investment Strategy to the Chief Finance Officer in consultation 
with the Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance;  

 
(g) approve the Draft Treasury Management Policy Statement as set 

out at Appendix E.  
 
 
 
 

 
LORNA BAXTER 
Chief Finance Officer 
 
Contact officer: Lewis Gosling – Financial Manager (Treasury Management) 
Contact number: 01865 323988   
 
December 2014 
 

Page 26



AG6 

Appendix A 
 

Prudential Indicators 2015/16, 2016/17 and 2017/18 
 

i. Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement 
 

i.i. This is a key indicator of prudence.  In order the ensure that the medium term debt 
will only be for a capital purpose, the local authority should ensure that the gross 
debt does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of the capital financing 
requirement (CFR) in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional 
increases to the capital financing requirement for the current and next two financial 
years. 
 

i.ii. The Chief Finance Officer reports that the Council’s level of gross debt exceeded 
the CFR in 2013/14 and maintains a likelihood of doing so over the medium term. 
The reasons for this are set out in paragraphs 8.15 to 8.18  of the Treasury 
Management Strategy. This view takes into account current commitments, existing 
plans and the proposals in the approved budget.  

 
 
 

Debt 
31.03.15 
Revised 
£m 

31.03.16 
Estimate 

£m 

31.03.17 
Estimate 

£m 

31.03.18 
Estimate 

£m 

External Borrowing tbd tbd tbd tbd 

Long Term Liabilities tbd tbd tbd tbd 

Total Debt tbd tbd tbd tbd 

 
 

ii. Estimates of Capital Expenditure 
 

ii.i. The Council is required to make reasonable estimates of the total of capital 
expenditure that it plans to incur during 2015/16 and the following two financial 
years. The Council must also approve the actual expenditure for 2013/14 and 
revised expenditure for 2014/15. 
 
 
 2013/14 

Actual 
£m 

2014/15 
Revised 
£m 

2015/16 
Estimate 

£m 

2016/17 
Estimate 

£m 

2017/18
Estimate 

£m 
Capital Expenditure 67.201 tbd tbd tbd tbd 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



AG6 

 
 

  Actual Estimates 
2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 
£m £m £m £m £m 

       
SCE(R) Supported 
Borrowing 

0.000 
    

Prudential Borrowing 1.221     
Grants and Contributions 58.771     
Capital Receipts 0.000 tbd tbd tbd tbd 
Revenue  7.209     
Reserves  0.000     

       

  67.201     
 

ii.ii. The indicators have been based on the February 2015 capital programme which will 
be considered for approval by Council on 17 February 2015 with the Service & 
Resource Planning Report. 

 
ii.iii. The capital expenditure figures for beyond 2015/16 will be able to be revised in 

twelve months’ time. 
 
 

iii. The Ratio of Financing Costs to the Net Revenue Stream 
 

iii.i. This is an indicator of affordability and highlights the revenue implications of existing 
and proposed capital expenditure by identifying the proportion of the revenue 
budget required to meet financing costs. The definition of financing costs is set out 
in the Prudential Code. 

 
 

Year Actual/ 
Estimate 

Financing 
Cost 

Net Revenue 
Stream 

Ratio 

  £m £m % 
2013/14 Actual tbd tbd tbd 
2014/15 Estimate tbd tbd tbd 
2015/16 Estimate tbd tbd tbd 
2016/17 Estimate tbd tbd tbd 
2017/18 Estimate tbd tbd tbd 

 
iii.ii. Financing costs include interest payable on borrowing, interest and investment 

income and the amount required for the minimum revenue provision.   
 

 
iv. The Capital Financing Requirement 

 
iv.i Estimates of the end of year Capital Financing Requirement for the Authority for the 

current and future years and the actual Capital Financing Requirement at 31 March 
2014 that are recommended for approval are: 

Page 28



AG6 

Year Actual/Estimate £m 
2013/14 Actual 422.895 
2014/15 Estimate tbd 
2015/16 Estimate tbd 
2016/17 Estimate tbd 
2017/18 Estimate tbd 

 
iv.ii The Capital Financing Requirement measures the authority’s underlying need to 

borrow for a capital purpose. In accordance with best professional practice the 
County Council does not associate borrowing with particular items or types of 
expenditure. The authority has an integrated Treasury Management Strategy and 
has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the Public 
Services. The Council has, at any point in time, a number of cashflows both positive 
and negative, and manages its treasury position in terms of its borrowings and 
investments in accordance with its approved treasury management strategy and 
practices. In day-to-day cash management, no distinction can be made between 
revenue cash and capital cash. External borrowing arises as a consequence of all 
the financial transactions of the authority and not simply those arising from capital 
spending. In contrast, the capital financing requirement reflects the authority’s 
underlying need to borrow for a capital purpose. 
 

 
v. The Incremental Impact of Capital Investment Decisions 

 
v.i. This is an indicator of affordability that shows the impact of capital investment 

decisions on Council Tax and Housing Rent levels. The incremental impact is 
calculated by comparing the total revenue budget requirement of the current 
approved capital programme with an equivalent calculation of the revenue budget 
requirement arising from the proposed capital programme. 
 

v.ii. The estimate of the incremental impact of capital investment decisions proposed in 
the Capital Programme, over and above capital investment decisions that have 
previously been taken by the Council are, for the Band D Council Tax: 

 
Year Actual/Estimate £ 
2015/16 Estimate tbd 
2016/17 Estimate tbd 
2017/18 Estimate tbd 

 
 
 

vi. Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary for External Debt 
 

vi.i. The Authority has an integrated treasury management strategy and manages its 
treasury position in accordance with its approved strategy and practice. Overall 
borrowing will therefore arise as a consequence of all the financial transactions of 
the Authority and not just those arising from capital spending reflected in the CFR.  
 

vi.ii. The Authorised Limit sets the maximum level of external debt on a gross basis (i.e. 
excluding investments) for the Authority. It is measured on a daily basis against all 

Page 29



AG6 

external debt items on the Balance Sheet (i.e. long and short term borrowing, 
overdrawn bank balances and long term liabilities). This Prudential Indicator 
separately identifies borrowing from other long term liabilities such as finance 
leases. It is consistent with the Authority’s existing commitments, its proposals for 
capital expenditure and financing and its approved treasury management policy 
statement and practices.   
 

vi.iii. The Authorised Limit is the statutory limit determined under Section 3(1) of the 
Local Government Act 2003 (referred to in the legislation as the Affordable Limit). 

 
vi.iv. The Operational Boundary has been set on the estimate of the most likely, i.e. 

prudent but not worst case scenario with sufficient headroom over and above this to 
allow for unusual cash movements.  

 
vi.v. The Operational Boundary links directly to the Authority’s estimates of the CFR and 

estimates of other cashflow requirements. This indicator is based on the same 
estimates as the Authorised Limit reflecting the most likely, prudent but not worst 
case scenario but without the additional headroom included within the Authorised 
Limit.   

 
 
 2014/15 

probable 
outturn 

2015/16 
estimate 

2016/17 
estimate 

2017/18 
estimate 

 £m £m £m £m 
Operational Boundary for 
external debt - 

    

Borrowing 434.0 tbd tbd tbd 
other long term liabilities 40.0 tbd tbd tbd 
TOTAL 474.0 tbd tbd tbd 
Authorised Limit for 
external debt - 

    

Borrowing 444.0 tbd tbd tbd 
other long term liabilities 40.0 tbd tbd tbd 
TOTAL 484.0 tbd tbd tbd 

 
 

vii. Actual External Debt 
 

vii.i This indicator enables the comparison of Actual External Debt at year end to the 
Operational Boundary and Authorised Limit.   

 
Total External Debt as at 31.03.14 £m 
External Borrowing 401.383 
Financing Liability   26.500 
Total 427.883 

 
 

viii. Adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services Code of 
Practice 
 

Page 30



AG6 

viii.i This indicator demonstrates that the Council has adopted the principles of best 
practice. 
 

viii.ii The Council has incorporated the changes from the revised CIPFA Code of Practice 
into its treasury policies, procedures and practices. 
 
 

Adoption of the CIPFA Code of Practice in Treasury Management 

The Council approved the adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code at its 
meeting of Full Council on 1 April 2003. 

 
 

ix. Gross and net debt 
 

ix.i This indicator is intended to identify where an authority may be borrowing in 
advance of need.   

 
Upper Limit of net debt: 

 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 
Net Debt / Gross Debt 70% 70% 70% 70% 

 
 

x. Upper and lower limits to maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing 
 

x.i. This indicator highlights the existence of any large concentrations of fixed rate debt 
needing to be replaced at times of uncertainty over interest rates and is designed to 
protect against excessive exposures to interest rate changes in any one period, in 
particular in the course of the next ten years.   
 

x.ii. It is calculated as the amount of projected borrowing that is fixed rate maturing in 
each period as a percentage of total projected borrowing that is fixed rate. The 
maturity of borrowing is determined by reference to the earliest date on which the 
lender can require payment.  
 

x.iii. LOBOs are classified as maturing on the next call date, this being the earliest date 
that the lender can require repayment. 
 
Maturity structure of fixed rate 
borrowing during 2015/16 

Lower Limit 
% 

Upper Limit 
% 

Under 12 months 0 20 
12 months and within 24 months 0 25 
24 months and within 5 years 0 35 
5 years and within 10 years 5 40 
10 years and above 50 95 

 
 
 
 

Page 31



AG6 

xi. Upper limits on fixed and variable rate interest exposures 
 

xi.i These indicators allow the Authority to manage the extent to which it is exposed to 
changes in interest rates.  This Authority calculates these limits on net principal 
outstanding sums, (i.e. fixed rate debt net of fixed rate investments. 

  
Upper limit for fixed interest rate exposure: 

 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 
Net principal re fixed rate borrowing / 
investments  150% 150% 150% 150% 

 
 

xi.ii The upper limit for variable rate exposure has been set to ensure that the Authority 
is not exposed to interest rate rises which could adversely impact on the revenue 
budget.  The limit allows for the use of variable rate debt to offset exposure to 
changes in short-term rates on investments. 

 
Upper limit for variable rate exposure: 

 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 
Net principal re variable rate borrowing / 
investments 25% 25% 25% 25% 

 
 

xii. Upper limit to total of principal sums invested longer than 364 days 
 

xii.i The purpose of this limit is to contain exposure to the risk of loss that may arise as a 
result of the Authority having to seek early repayment of the sums invested. 
 

xii.ii It is proposed that the limit remain at £150m in 2015/16 to reflect the size of the 
cash portfolio and to continue to offer flexibility in the investment strategy. The 
average in-house cash balance for 2013/14 was just under £350m. 

  
 

  

 2014/15  
£m 

2015/16  
£m 

2016/17  
£m 

2017/18 
£m 

Upper limit on principal sums invested 
longer than 364 days 150 150 150 150 

Page 32



AG6 

Appendix B 
 
Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement for 2015/16 

 
Introduction 

 
1. The Council is required by statute to charge a Minimum Revenue Provision 

(MRP) to the General Fund Revenue account each year for the repayment of 
debt. The MRP charge is the means by which capital expenditure which has 
been funded by borrowing is paid for by council tax payers. 

 
2. Until 2007/08, the basis of the calculation for the MRP was specified in 

legislation. Legislation (Statutory Instrument 2008 no. 414 s4) which came into 
force on 31 March 2008, gives local authorities more freedom to determine 
what a prudent level of MRP is.  

 
3. The new legislation requires local authorities to draw up a statement of their 

policy on the annual MRP, for full approval by Council before the start of the 
financial year to which the provision will relate. 

 
4. The implementation of the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 

requirements brought some service concession arrangements on balance 
sheet and resulted in some leases being reclassified as finance leases instead 
of operating leases.  Part of the service charge or rent payable is taken to 
reduce the balance sheet liability rather than being charged to revenue 
accounts.  To ensure that this does not result in a one-off increase in the 
capital financing requirement and in revenue account balances, an amount 
equal to the amount that has been taken to the balance sheet is included in the 
annual MRP charge.    

 
Options for Prudent Provision 

 
5. Guidance on the legislation sets out a number of options for making ‘prudent 

provision’. Options 1 and 2 relate to Government supported borrowing. Options 
3 and 4 relate to new borrowing under the Prudential system for which no 
Government support is being given and is therefore self-financed. Authorities 
are able to use any of the four options for MRP. The options are explained 
below. 

 
Option 1 - Regulatory Method 

 
6. This is the current method, and for debt supported by Revenue Support Grant 

(RSG), authorities can choose to continue to use the formula. This is 
calculated as 4% of the council’s general fund capital financing requirement, 
adjusted for smoothing factors from the transition to the prudential capital 
financing regime in 2003.   

 
 
 

Page 33



AG6 

 
Option 2 – Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) Method 

 
7. Option 2 differs from Option 1 only in that the smoothing factors are removed. 

This is a simpler calculation; however for most authorities including 
Oxfordshire, it would result in a higher level of provision than Option 1.   

 
Option 3 – Asset Life Method 

 
8. For new borrowing under the Prudential system, Option 3 is to make provision 

in equal instalments over the estimated life of the asset for which the 
borrowing is undertaken or the alternative is the annuity method which has the 
advantage of linking MRP the flow of benefits from an asset where the benefits 
are expected to increase in later years. As with the existing scheme of MRP, 
provision for the debt will normally commence in the financial year following the 
one in which the expenditure is incurred.  There is however one exception to 
this rule under Option 3. In the case of the construction of a new building or 
infrastructure, MRP would not have to be charged until the new asset came 
into service. The MRP ‘holiday’ would perhaps be two or three years in the 
case of major projects and could make them more affordable. 

 
Option 4 – Depreciation Method 

 
9. For new borrowing under the Prudential system, Option 4 is to make MRP in 

accordance with the standard rules for depreciation accounting.  
 

MRP Methodology Statement 
 
10. The policy already in place in the Council is reflected in Options 1 and 3; 

consequently the statement requiring approval by Council is a confirmation of 
existing practice and continuation of the policy approved by Council in June 
2008.  The Council is recommended therefore to approve the following 
statement: 

 
11. For capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008 or which in the future will 

relate to Supported Capital Expenditure, the MRP policy will be based on 
existing regulations (Option 1 – Regulatory Method). 

 
12. From 1 April 2008, for all unsupported borrowing, the MRP policy will be based 

on the estimated life of the assets for which the borrowing is undertaken 
(Option 3 – Asset Life Method or Annuity Method). 

 
13. In the case of finance leases and on-balance sheet Private Finance Initiative 

(PFI) type contracts, the MRP requirement will be regarded as being met by a 
charge equal to the element of the rent/charge that goes to write-down the 
balance sheet liability, including the retrospective element in the first year 
(Option 3 in modified form). 

 
14. The major proportion of the MRP for 2015/16 will relate to the more historic 

debt liability that will continue to be charged at the rate of 4%, in accordance 

Page 34



AG6 

with Option 1 of the guidance.  Certain expenditure reflected within the debt 
liability at 31 March 2015 will be subject to MRP under Option 3, which will be 
charged over a period which is reasonably commensurate with the estimated 
useful life applicable to the nature of expenditure, using the equal annual 
instalment method.  For example, capital expenditure on a new building, or on 
the refurbishment or enhancement of a building, will be related to the 
estimated life of that building.  

 
 

Page 35



AG6 

Appendix C 
 

Specified Investments 

 
 

                                            
1 I.e., credit rated funds which meet the definition of a collective investment scheme as defined in SI 
2004 No 534 and SI 2007 No 573. 

Investment Instrument Minimum Credit 
Criteria 

Use 

Debt Management Agency 
Deposit Facility 

N/A In-house and 
Fund Managers 

Term Deposits – UK 
Government 

N/A In-house 

Term Deposits – Banks and 
Building Societies 

Fitch short-term F1, Long-
term BBB-, 
Minimum Sovereign Rating 
AA+ 

In-house and 
Fund Managers 

Term Deposits with 
Nationalised Banks with 
Government Guarantee for 
wholesale deposits 

N/A In-house 

Certificates of Deposit issued 
by Banks and Building 
Societies 

A1 or P1 In-house on a 
buy and hold 
basis and  Fund 
Managers 

Money Market Funds with a 
Constant Net Asset Value 

AAA In-house and 
Fund Managers 

Other Money Market Funds 
and Collective Investment 
Schemes1 

Minimum equivalent credit 
rating of A+. These funds 
do not have short-term or 
support ratings. 

In-house and 
Fund Managers 

UK Government Gilts AAA In-house on a 
buy and hold 
basis and  Fund 
Managers 

Treasury Bills N/A In-house and 
Fund Managers 

Reverse Repurchase 
Agreements - maturity under 
1 year from arrangement and 
counterparty is of high credit 
quality (not collateral) 

Counterparty Rating: 
Fitch short-term F1, Long-
term A- 

In-house and 
Fund Managers 

Covered Bonds – maturity 
under 1 year from 
arrangement 

A- In-house and 
Fund Managers 

Page 36



AG6 

 
  

Page 37



AG6 

Appendix D 
 
Non-Specified Investments 

 
Investment 
Instrument 

Minimum 
Credit 
Criteria 

Use Max % of 
total 

Investments 

Max 
Maturity 
Period 

Debt Management 
Agency Deposit Facility 
(maturities in excess of 
1 year)2 

N/A In-house 
and Fund 
Managers 

50% 3 years 

Term Deposits – UK 
Government (maturities 
in excess of 1 year) 

N/A In-house 50% 3 years 

Term Deposits – other 
Local Authorities 
(maturities in excess of 
1 year) 

N/A In-house 50% 3 years 

Term Deposits – Banks 
and Building Societies 
(maturities in excess of 
1 year) 

Fitch short-term 
F1+, Long-term 
AA- 
 

In-house 
and Fund 
Managers 

50% in-
house; 
 
100% 
External 
Funds 

3 years 

Structured Products 
(e.g. Callable deposits, 
range accruals, 
snowballs, escalators 
etc) 

Fitch short-term 
F1+, Long-term 
AA- 
 
 
 
 
 

In-house 
and Fund 
Managers 

50% in-
house; 
 
100% 
External 
Funds 

3 years 

UK Government Gilts 
with maturities in excess 
of 1 year 

AAA In-house 
and Fund 
Managers 

50% in-
house;  
 
100% 
External 
Funds 

5 years in-
house, 10 
years fund 
managers 

Bonds issued by 
Multilateral development 
banks 

AAA In-house 
and Fund 
Managers 

50% in-
house; 
 
100% 
External 
Fund 

5 years in-
house, 
10 years 
fund 
managers 

                                            
2 Debt Management Agency Deposit Facility currently limit deposits to 6 months. The ability to deposit 
in excess of 1 year is retained if such deposits become available. 

Page 38



AG6 

Investment 
Instrument 

Minimum 
Credit 
Criteria 

Use Max % of 
total 

Investments 

Max 
Maturity 
Period 

Bonds issued by a 
financial institution 
which is guaranteed by 
the UK Government 

AAA In-house 
and Fund 
Managers 

50% in-
house; 100% 
External 
Fund 

5 years in-
house, 10 
years fund 
managers 

Supranationals N/A In-house 
and Fund 
Managers 

50% in-
house; 100% 
of External 
Fund 

5 years in-
house, 
30 years 
fund 
managers 

 
Money Market Funds 
and Collective 
Investment Schemes3 
but which are not credit 
rated 

N/A In-house 
and Fund 
Managers 

50% In-
house; 100% 
External 
Funds 

Pooled 
Funds do 
not have a 
defined 
maturity 
date 

Sovereign Bond Issues AAA In-house 
on a buy 
and hold 
basis. 
Fund 
Managers 

50% in-
house;  
100% 
External 
Funds  

5 year in-
house, 30 
years fund 
managers 

Reverse Repurchase 
Agreements - maturity in 
excess of 1 year, or/and 
counterparty not of high 
credit quality. 

Determined by 
TMST 
 

In-house 
and Fund 
Managers 

50% in-
house;  
100% 
External 
Funds 

3 years, 10 
years fund 
managers 

Covered Bonds  A- In-house 
and Fund 
Managers 

50% in-
house;  
100% 
External 
Funds 

3 years, 10 
years fund 
managers 

Registered Providers A- In-house 50% In-house 3 years 
 
The maximum limits for in-house investments apply at the time of arrangement. 

                                            
3 Pooled funds which meet the definition of a collective investment scheme as defined in SI 2004 No 
534 and SI 2007 No 573. 

Page 39



AG6 

Appendix E 

 
 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT POLICY STATEMENT 
 
1. Oxfordshire County Council defines its treasury management activities as: 

“The management of the organisation’s cash flows; its banking, money market 
and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated 
with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with 
those risks.” 

 
2. Oxfordshire County Council regards the successful identification, monitoring 

and control of risk to be the prime criteria by which the effectiveness of its 
treasury management activities will be measured. Accordingly, the analysis 
and reporting of treasury management activities will focus on their risk 
implications for the organisation. 

 
3. Oxfordshire County Council acknowledges that effective treasury 

management will provide support towards achievement of its business and 
service objectives. It is therefore committed to the principles of achieving best 
value in treasury management and to employing suitable performance 
measurement techniques, within the context of effective risk management. 
 

4. The Council’s borrowing will be affordable, sustainable and prudent and 
consideration will be given to the management of interest rate risk and 
refinancing risk.  The source from which the borrowing is taken and the type 
of borrowing should allow the Council transparency and control over its debt. 
 

5. The Council’s primary objective in relation to investments remains the security 
of capital.  The liquidity or accessibility of the Authority’s investments followed 
by the yield earned on investments remain important but are secondary 
considerations.   

 
6. The manner in which Oxfordshire County Council will seek to achieve these 

objectives and the arrangements for managing and controlling treasury 
management activities is prescribed in the treasury management practices 
which support this policy statement. 

 
7. Responsibility for the implementation and monitoring of the Council’s treasury 

management policies and practices are vested in the Council. The officer 
responsible for the execution and administration of treasury management 
decisions is the Chief Finance Officer, who will act in accordance with this 
Policy Statement, Treasury Management Practices and CIPFA’s Standard of 
Professional Practice on Treasury Management. 
 

Page 40



AG6 

8. The Council nominates the Audit & Governance Committee to be responsible 
for ensuring effective scrutiny of the treasury management strategy and 
policies. 

 
9. Council will receive reports on treasury management policies, practices and 

activities including as a minimum, an annual strategy and plan in advance of 
the year, a mid-year review and an annual report after its close. 

 
 
 

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



Division(s): N/A 
 
 
AUDIT and GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 14 JANUARY 2015 

 
 INTERNAL AUDIT 2014/15 
PROGRESS REPORT  

 
Report by the Chief Financial Officer 

  
INTRODUCTION  
 

1. The last Internal Audit progress report presented to the Committee on 
17 September 2015 highlighted a significant resourcing pressure 
estimated to be equivalent to two FTE (400 days). The in-year resource 
deficit has been reduced to 270 days through outsourcing audit days 
from Hampshire County Council, and through assurance based risk 
management days from Zurich, the County Councils insurers.  
 

2. Overall the total audit days being delivered has reduced from 1141 
days to 870 days. In addition to the reduced resources there have been 
pressures on the available resource that have also required changes to 
the original planned activity; Up to 8 December, 63 days have been 
spent on counter-fraud, mainly on reactive investigation activity; and, 
there are internal performance issues to be addressed including 
overruns on planned audits.  

 
3. The revised Audit Plan is attached as Appendix 1 to this report. There 

are two tables in the appendix, the first shows the current status of the 
revised planned activity; the second table lists the audits removed from 
the Plan this year.   

4. There are three areas that are no longer going to be subject to audit 
this year, or where the audit methodology has been adapted to 
significantly reduce the number of days: 
• Feeder Systems - It was originally intended that an audit of all 

the financial feeder systems would be undertaken. This has 
been removed from the audit plan for this year. Assurance on 
these systems will be taken from the Finance Business Partners 
who provide an annual assurance statement to the Chief 
Finance Officer on the systems operating in their Directorate; 
Internal Audit will be testing the reconciliation controls for 
transfer of data from the feeder into SAP, as part of the audit of 
the Main Accounting System. 

• Schools - It was originally intended that thematic financial audits 
across a sample of school would be undertaken. Assurance will 
now be taken, as in previous years, from an audit of the 
Management Accounting (Schools) team, and the oversight they 
have over financial management in schools.  

Agenda Item 7

Page 43



AG7 

• Governance - In recent years Internal Audit have undertaken a 
programme of governance audits testing the key controls 
operating corporately and within the Directorates, including 
targeting some specific teams/establishments. This work has 
contributed to the Directors' Annual Assurance Statements. The 
methodology is changing this year in order to reduce the number 
of audit days; a risk assessment template will be submitted to all 
direct reports to Deputy Directors asking them to self-assess the 
risk of each of the key governance systems in their service. The 
risk assessment will then be followed up with a controls 
assurance interview with Internal Audit, who will also seek 
evidence to support the management responses. At the end of 
the interviews, an assessment of the adequacy of the controls 
will be agreed between the Manager and Internal Audit, together 
with an action plan. The results will then be presented to the 
Deputy Directors, and then to the Director. The Audit & 
Governance Committee will receive a report showing the 
outcomes across the Council.    

5. For 2015/16 the position is stronger regarding resources. A Principal 
Auditor is scheduled to return from maternity leave before July 2015; 
internal resource will be prioritised for planning to OCC and Thames 
Valley Police. The resourcing strategy with OCC and Buckinghamshire 
County Council will not be dependent on the sharing of resources (with 
the exception of the Chief Internal Auditor). The actual resourcing plan 
will be finalised towards the end of March 2015. 
 

6. The impact of counter-fraud work on the team will also be reduced from 
2015/16. The Council has successfully bid for government funding to 
support counter-fraud initiatives. OCC bid for £81K for working with 
Oxford City Council Counter-Fraud Team, to undertake proactive 
counter-fraud reviews within key fraud risk areas using a data 
warehouse tool they will be procuring, and to manage the first response 
and risk assessment to reactive fraud referrals. The funding was 
announced at the beginning of December, so we will be working with 
the City team in Q4 to develop the governance and work plan.  
 
REVIEW OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

7. The internal annual review of the effectiveness of Internal Audit is due 
in Q4, and is part of the assurance framework informing the Annual 
Governance Statement.   It is recommended that the review should 
follow the same process as previous years where the Committee 
commissions the Monitoring Officer to carry out a desk top review with 
the Chief Internal Auditor; and, the Monitoring Officer undertake a 
survey of the Extended County Council Management Team to obtain 
direct feedback from Mangers on the effectiveness of the team.  

2014/15 AUDIT PLAN PROGRESS 

8. There have been seven audits concluded since the last update 
(provided to the September meeting of the Audit and Governance 
Committee); summaries of findings and current status of management 

Page 44



AG7 

actions are detailed in Appendix 2. The completed audits are as 
follows: 

 

Directorate 2014/15 Audits Opinion 

OCS Managed Connectivity Services (Part 2) 
2014/15 

Green 

EE Energy from Waste Green 

SCS Residential and Home Support Payments Red 

OCS IT Disaster Recovery Amber 

CEF Frameworki Application Green 

OCS PSN Code of Connection Review Amber 

CEF Church Cowley School Amber 

 

PERFORMANCE  

9. The following performance indicators are monitored on a monthly 
basis. 
 

Performance Measure  Target  % 
Performance 
Achieved 

Comments 

Elapsed Time for completion 
of audit work (exit meeting) 
to issue of draft report. 

15 days  85% The two audits that 
did not achieve the 
target averaged at 
10 days over. 

Elapsed Time between 
issue of Draft report and 
issue of Final Report. 
 

15 days  64% The four audits 
that did not 
achieve the target 
averaged at 17 
days over. 

 
The other four performance indicators are: 
 

• % of 2014/15 planned audit activity completed by 30 April 2015 - 
reported at year end. 

• % of management actions implemented - 85%. There are 3% (54 
actions) that are overdue 

• Effectiveness of Internal Audit - reported at year end. 
• Extended Management Team satisfaction with internal audit work - 

reported at year end. 
 
 

Page 45



AG7 

Performance Measure  Target  % 
Performance 
Achieved 

Comments 

Elapsed Time for completion 
of audit work (exit meeting) 
to issue of draft report. 
 

15 days  100% None. 

Elapsed Time between 
issue of Draft report and 
issue of Final Report. 
 

15 days  50% The two audits that 
did not achieve the 
target averaged at 
8 days over. 

 
COUNTER-FRAUD  

10. At the last Audit Committee up-date there were six schools under 
review / investigation. Four of these have now been satisfactorily 
concluded, with either management action taken to improve practices 
and internal controls and disciplinary action taken where appropriate; 
two are still being reviewed:  
 
• A Head teacher referred suspected systematic theft of cash at a 

school, to the Police. An employee resigned their post as a result. 
The Police are still investigating this issue and are being chased for 
an update.  

 
• One anonymous whistleblowing allegation was received relating to 

a grant fund being used to pay a senior member of school staff’s 
family member. Audit conducted some background checks with 
information available, however that did not show anything untoward. 
This allegation has now been passed to the Chair of Governors to 
look into, via the CEF Deputy Director. Information has been 
received from the Chair of Governors and is currently being 
reviewed by Internal Audit and the CEF Finance Business Partner.  

 

11. There has been a result in Court regarding the fraud within the County 
Print Finishers Unit. The dismissed employee has attended Crown 
Court and received a prison sentence of one year, suspended for two 
years, and is required to undertake community service. No funds were 
awarded to the Council through the compensation order; instead the 
Court decided to seek recovery through the Proceeds of Crime Act 
(POCA). The POCA hearing has now been held and the results of this 
are currently being reviewed with the Director, Monitoring Officer and 
Chief Finance Officer. 
  

12. A new referral has been received from a Library as it was identified that 
there was a discrepancy of £40 when tills were being cashed up. The 
Banking and Control Team have discussed the cash handling 
procedure with the Library. Internal Audit are not investigating at this 
stage but have advised to monitor closely and notify Audit should any 
further instances occur.  

Page 46



AG7 

 
13. There is a current provider investigation which Internal Audit is 

supporting SCS with. There are queries with the visits that the provider 
has claimed for. The provider is currently on red alert which means no 
new clients are placed with them. The investigation is on-going. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

14. The Committee is RECOMMENDED to: 
(a) approve the revised Internal Audit Plan; and 
(b) commission the Monitoring Officer to undertake the review 
 of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit. 

 
IAN DYSON 
Chief Internal Auditor 
 
Background papers:  None. 
Contact Officer: Ian Dyson 01865 323875 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 47



AG7 

APPENDIX 1 
 
2014/15 - Revised Internal Audit Plan Progress Summary 
 
Directorate  Audit  Status Conclusion Comments 
CEF Early Years Payments Completed Amber  
CEF 

Schools Assurance 

Not yet started  It was expected that in addition to the 
annual review of the management controls 
applied by the Management Accounting 
(Schools) Team, that we would audit a 
small sample of schools. This has been 
dropped from the plan due to resources; 
however the Chief Internal Auditor and the 
Finance Business Partner are to undertake 
a desk top review of the system of 
assurance for financial management in 
schools and this will form the basis of the 
14/15 report to the Committee. 

CEF 
Church Cowley School 

Completed Amber This audit was not originally planned but 
was agreed with the Finance Business 
Partner. 

CEF Frameworki (Children Social Care 
system) 

Completed Green  

CEF  
Placement Strategy 

Fieldwork  This audit is now close to the budgeted 
days, so additional days will be required to 
complete the audit. 

CEF Contract Procurement and Contract 
Management 

Fieldwork   

CEF Children's Social Care Management Not yet started   

P
age 48



AG7 

Controls 
CEF 

Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub 

Not yet started  This is a short 5 day audit to review the 
design of processes and governance 
arrangements once the MASH is 
operational. 

SCS 

LEAN / Responsible Localities 
Programme 

On-going  This is a major programme looking at 
improving the care pathway of clients and 
introducing new ways of working. The 
Audit Manager monitors the programme 
governance, and in conjunction with the 
Finance Business Partner, reviews newly 
designed processes.   

SCS Client Charging Completed Amber  
SCS Residential and External Home Support 

Payments Systems 

Completed Red Following this audit, the Internal Audit 
team has provided fraud awareness 
training to the Contract Monitoring team. 

SCS Pooled Budgets Fieldwork   
SCS 

Implementation of the Care Bill 

On-Going  The requirements of the care Act are being 
implemented through a programme in 
SCS. The Audit Manager is maintaining an 
overview of the governance of that 
programme including implementation 
plans. The CIA and the AM are attending a 
workshop for Internal Auditors in February 
focussed on the risks of the Care Act for 
Local Authorities.   

SCS 
Adult Social Care Information System 

On-going  This is another programme which the Audit 
Manager is maintaining an overview, and 
challenge to the programme management. 

P
age 49



AG7 

Included in the audit review of this change 
programme is an IT audit of the 
application, specifically security, and the 
system testing strategy.   

SCS Adult Social Care Management Controls Not yet started   
EE 

Property and Facilities Management 
Contract 

Draft Report 
pending 

 This audit has gone significantly over the 
allocated audit days and has exceeded the 
target dates for delivery of the audit; 
however we have not yet been able to 
clear the draft report through our quality 
monitoring process. The Directorate has 
been informed of the delay in issuing the 
report. 

EE Oxfordshire Innovation Support 
Programme 

Draft report   

EE Integrated Transport Unit Fieldwork   
EE Energy Recovery Facility (Energy From 

Waste) 
Completed Green  

EE 

S106 Agreements 

On-going  This will no longer be a systems based 
audit. The CIA is working with the Chief 
Finance Officer to map the assurance over 
the management of S106 agreements and 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
arrangements.  

EE OCS Windows Active Directory Completed Amber  
EE OCS 

Managed Connectivity Services 

Completed Green This audit was completed in two stages, 
with a report issued at both stages. Part 1 
was reported as Amber, but the conclusion 
at stage 2 changed the status to green. 

P
age 50



AG7 

EE OCS 

Externalisation Programme 

On-going  This audit is looking at the governance 
arrangements within the programme, 
particularly the Hampshire OBC 
partnership for Finance and HR functions, 
but will also review the design of the 
assurance framework for the new 
arrangements, and the future audit 
plan/methodology for testing the key 
systems.  

EE OCS PSN Code of Connection Completed Amber  
EE OCS IT Disaster Recovery Completed Amber  
EE OCS Pensions Administration Not yet started   
EE OCS ICT Strategy Fieldwork   
Fire 

Joint Fire Control 
On-going  The Audit Manager monitors the 

governance and reviews the design of 
controls for the joint fire control project.   

Fire Joint Fire Control - application audit Not yet started    
Public 
Health Risk Management review Not yet started   

CEO 
Association of County Chief Executives 
accounts 

Not yet started  Oxfordshire County Council is the 
allocated auditors for this fund, managed 
by Gloucestershire CC. The audit will be 
undertaken by a CIPFA Trainee. 

Cross 
Cutting 

Governance 

Scoping  The audit will cover all the key governance 
processes and will test through interviews 
with Managers the level of understanding 
and assurance that local systems are in 
place to ensure the key controls are 
operating and being adhered to. This will 

P
age 51



AG7 

be undertaken across all the Directorates 
and Services. 

Cross 
Cutting 

Risk Management Review - Business 
Continuity in the supply chain 

Not yet started   

Key 
Financial 
System 

Payroll 
Not yet Started   

Key 
Financial 
System 

Procure to Pay including Accounts 
Payable 

Not yet started   

Key 
Financial 
System 

Accounts Receivable including cash 
receipting 

Not yet started   

Key 
Financial 
System 

General Ledger & Main Accounting 
Not yet started   

Key 
Financial 
System 

Treasury Management 
Not yet started   

Key 
Financial 
System 

Pension Fund Management 
Not yet started   

 
 
 
The following audits have been removed from the plan: 
 
CEF SEND (Special Education Needs and Disability) 

Programme 
An audit of SEN was undertaken in 2013/14. This audit was to look at any new processes resulting 
from the SEND Reforms Project. The Audit Manager has been monitoring progress of this project 
with the Deputy Director and was assured that the project was on track with no issues arising, 

P
age 52



AG7 

therefore it was agreed to defer any audit work until post implementation. The audit will therefore be 
deferred until 2015/16.  

CEF Thriving Families Grant  It was expected that Internal Audit would be required to undertake an independent review of the grant 
returns prepared in respect of Thriving Families. This has not been required. Internal Audit was 
involved in reviewing the systems and processes at the commencement of the Thriving Families 
programme, and this included assurance that adequate management controls over data quality are in 
place. It was agreed that no additional work was required from Internal Audit for future returns; 
however, the Government has recently published procedures for the latest funding for this programme, 
and this now stipulates a requirement for Internal Audit to test the validity of returns going forward. 
This will not be effective until 2015/16. 

SCS Contract Procurement and Contract Management This audit has been removed due to resources; however the Payments audit has highlighted some 
queries with regards to contract management which are being followed up, and in addition a risk 
management review looking at business continuity risks within our supply chain has been included 
within the audit plan, and SCS Contracts is expected to be the main area for testing.  

SCS 
Personal Budgets and Direct Payments 

This audit is being deferred to the end of Q1 2015/16, post implementation of the new Adult Social 
Care IT system. The fraud risk for this activity has also been highlighted as an area for review early 
under the new counter-fraud arrangements being developed with Oxford City.  

 

EE Capital Programme Governance and Delivery Due the significant overrun on the Property and FM audit, we can no longer resource this audit in 
2014/15 

EE Supported Transport Programme As above 
EE Highways Contract As above 
EE Waste Disposal Contracts As above 
EE Planning This audit has been deferred until 2015/16 due to resources. 
EE OCS Externalisation of ICT Services This audit has been removed from the plan and the IT Audit days allocated to an IT audit of the new 

ASC IT System, with a small contingency retained to support the audit of the Externalisation 
Programme should IT audit specialism be required. It was agreed to replace the original audit The 
initial scope of the audit was to "To review the management of services that have been externalised 
(e.g. SAP and the Data Centre), as well as operational controls over the managed print service; 
however the SAP contract is changing with Hampshire, the contract with Vodafone for the network 
has only recently commenced (we audited the project in 14/15) and the Data Centre is relatively new 
(project audited end of 13/14).  

Public Health Grants / Contract Procurement and Contract 
Management 

This audit has been replaced with a risk management review, looking at the adequacy and 
completeness of the risk management process and identified risks. The review will map the processes 
management has in place to provide assurance over the risk management. This will include the areas 
originally in the scope for a systems based audit.  

P
age 53



AG7 

 

P
age 54



AG7 

Appendix 2 
 
Summary of Completed 2014/15 Audits, since last presented to 
Audit & Governance Committee on 17 September 2014. 
 
 
EE OCS - Managed Connectivity Services (Part 2) 2014/15.  
 
 

Opinion: Green 15 September 2014 
Total: 05 Priority 1 = 0 Priority 2 = 05 
Current Status:  
Implemented 04 
Due not yet actioned 01 
Partially complete 0 
Not yet Due 0 

 
Overall Conclusion 
 
This audit of the MCS programme was undertaken over two stages. The first stage 
review was undertaken in May 2014 and identified a number of risk areas, including 
a lack of formally defined roles and responsibilities for key groups and individuals 
involved in the programme and weaknesses in the management of the OCC risk log 
and project plan.  There was also an issue with the late delivery of key documents 
included in the Vodafone contract. Our second stage review has confirmed that the 
management actions agreed to address these areas of risk have all been 
implemented.   
The programme structure comprises of a project team and a Management Group.  
The project team, which meets on a weekly basis, includes relevant staff from OCC 
and Vodafone and are responsible for the operational delivery of the programme.  
The Management Group are responsible for providing oversight and discharging 
other relevant governance requirements.  It meets on a monthly basis and will 
continue to have responsibilities beyond the delivery of the programme. 
Risks and Issues are being logged by the project team, although they are not 
formally included in any report to the Management Group. As such, the Management 
Group may not be aware of all key risks and cannot ensure they are being 
appropriately managed. A report of top risks and issues is included in the highlight 
report to the ICT Programme Board. 
The delivery of the programme was found to be effectively monitored against agreed 
milestones. Vodafone have missed delivery targets against a number of key 
milestones and have also failed to deliver on the remedial actions that were agreed 
to address the slippage. The programme remains behind schedule, although at this 
stage there is confidence that MCS connectivity will be delivered to all OCN sites by 
the original target date of 30th November 2014.  The next few weeks will be pivotal 
to achieving this target and a failure to meet the timescale will have a financial 
impact on the Authority.  On this basis and in the event of any claim for 
compensation or damages, it would beneficial to confirm the current status of the 
programme and the delays in writing with Vodafone.   

Page 55



AG7 

Programme costs are being monitored against the budget and figures are reported to 
the MCS Management Group and the ICT Programme Board. The current forecast 
costs are within budget, although this could change should there be any further 
delays to the programme. 
Testing has been undertaken at pilot sites that have gone ‘live’ with MCS, although 
the overall approach and governance needs to be improved. The test plans being 
used have not been formally approved, do not make it clear whether the test passed 
or failed and are not subject to any sign-off/approval after they have been executed. 
 
 
 
  

Page 56



AG7 

EE - ENERGY FROM WASTE 2014/15 
 
 

Opinion: Green 06 October 2014 
Total: 06 Priority 1 = 01 Priority 2 = 05 
Current Status:  
Implemented 01 
Due not yet actioned 0 
Partially complete 0 
Not yet Due 05 

 
Overall Conclusion 
 
The overall conclusion is supported by findings identified in the following areas: 

 
Contract Governance: Overall contract and service governance has been 
established and documented. The current Terms of Reference for the OCC/Viridor 
Strategic Partnership Board (approved in October 2012) is due for review and also 
needs to be updated to include the board's responsibility in relation to the on-going 
management of risks. 
 
Payment Mechanism: Two key flowcharts have been produced by the team to 
facilitate the monthly data checking and invoice payment process: 
 
"Viridor EfW - Data Checking Process". 
"Invoice Payment Flowchart for Viridor Oxfordshire Ltd Invoice". 
 
There are currently no narrative procedures to support the one page process charts 
for checking and processing Viridor invoices. Additionally, both processes are yet to 
be signed off by the E&E Finance Business Partner as acceptable finance 
processes, although the audit did confirm that the processes are in accordance with 
established business processes and authorisation limits. 

 
The "RPI Viridor OCC Invoicing Spread sheet" contains key contract data, as well as 
formulas that calculate the invoice value, profit share, etc. Testing confirmed that 
neither the data nor formula cells have been locked to prevent unauthorised changes 
to the spread sheet’s core data. One additional point was identified at the time of the 
audit in that there is currently no process or procedure to deal with queries that 
remain unresolved when the invoice is paid, that may need to be carried forward 
onto future invoices. 
 
Contract Monitoring: A Performance Measurement Framework has been agreed, 
that includes a list of 47 Service Performance Standards. The Contract Management 
Team will be responsible for monitoring and checking the Service Performance 
Standards. However, at the time of the audit, the processes for reviewing the 
performance data to verify its accuracy was yet to be agreed. 
 
During the audit, two further issues were discussed, but are not being raised as 
findings as management are aware of the issues and progress is being made in 

Page 57



AG7 

resolving them: 
 

- The live web based data system is not currently up and running and the 
interface between the onsite ICT systems (weigh bridge and the Viridor 
invoicing system) is also not in place. The impact is that OCC do not 
currently have access to the live weight bridge data to review deposits on 
a daily or weekly basis. Additionally, Viridor are issuing manual 
weighbridge tickets until the weighbridge systems are integrated and this 
becomes automatic. This is expected to improve data quality. There is 
currently no risk register for the operational phase of the service, once the 
commissioning phase has been completed and signed off. 

 

A two part audit was conducted during 2009 of the Oxfordshire Residual Waste 
Treatment Procurement Project. The overall conclusion for both phases of the audit 
was "Green", with no findings being raised. 

 
 
 
  

Page 58



AG7 

SCS - Residential and Home Support Payments Process 2014/15 
 
 

Opinion: RED 20 October 2014 
Total: 35 Priority 1 = 20 Priority 2 = 15 
Current Status:  
Implemented 11 
Due not yet actioned 09 
Partially complete 09 
Not yet Due 06 

 
Overall Conclusion 
 
Our overall conclusion is RED.  For the Residential payments process Internal Audit 
identified that there is generally a sound system of internal control in place, with risks 
being mitigated to acceptable levels, and the conclusion for this area is therefore 
Amber.  For home care support payments the system of internal control is weak in 
relation to ETMS use and monitoring, where risks are not being effectively managed 
and assurance cannot therefore be provided on payment accuracy due to the large 
volume of remotely logged visits and inadequate monitoring and follow up of this. 
The system is open to the risk of significant error or abuse without adequate 
detection and escalation. Significant action is required to improve controls, and the 
audit conclusion on home care support payments is therefore red. 
 
Residential care home payments 
Following a recent NFI (National Fraud Initiative) exercise to identify residential 
clients who have deceased but who OCC continue to fund, £40k of overpayments 
were identified and subsequently recovered (these were for five clients across three 
providers). This audit therefore reviewed in detail the processes in place to identify 
clients who have deceased and to cease their payments accordingly.  
From the sample testing, the audit established that in the majority of cases, the 
providers and/or the clients' families informed OCC of client deaths, however there 
are cases where the provider failed to inform OCC, which is in breach of contract. In 
the NFI cases, the Contracts team were not informed of these contract breaches 
even after the payments had been investigated and recovered.  
There were also cases where the death was not communicated internally to the 
Payments team. However there is an adequate monthly reconciliation between Swift 
death records and Abacus to identify these clients who according to Swift have 
deceased but who are still being paid for according to Abacus (note that this 
reconciliation relies upon OCC being informed of the death and upon Swift being 
updated with the date of death, and in the cases highlighted by the NFI exercise, the 
date of death had not been recorded in Swift).  
The audit noted that with the introduction of the new Adult Social Care IT system in 
May 2015, some of these issues should be addressed as all teams will be working 
from a common data set, therefore when a date of death is input, it should 
automatically update the payment details too. 
Four out of five of the over payment cases identified by NFI were FNC (Funded 
Nursing Care) clients, who are actually Health-funded clients, but who OCC pay for 
via the Pooled Budget. A daily information sheet is provided from Health with 

Page 59



AG7 

updates on client movements or deaths, however there was some lack of clarity on 
the responsibility for updating Swift within OCC when notification of their death is 
received (some of the Health clients do not even have a Swift record if they are not 
open to Social Care). It was also noted for Out of county clients there is currently 
insufficient communication with other LA's regarding these clients and their FNC 
payments.  
 
Home care support payments 
Approximately 70 external providers are contracted by OCC to provide home care 
support for older people, learning disability, mental health and physical disability 
clients. Between 80-85% of these providers use ETMS, the automated time 
management system (CM2000) whilst the remainder use timesheets and are paid 
via paper invoices instead. The team of Care Service Administrators (CSAs) are 
responsible for checking both types of payments against client's care packages to 
ensure we are paying in line with the care package authorised within OCC. From a 
sample review of both types of payments, the checks performed by the CSAs appear 
thorough, with queries sufficiently investigated and payments withheld if necessary. 
For providers using ETMS properly, with the carer's unique and confidential PIN 
number, there is little risk of falsified or incorrect visit data as the carer has to log in 
and out at the client's home using the clients' phone, thereby providing an accurate 
record of the visit times. However, providers can for legitimate reasons log or amend 
visits remotely (e.g. from their office phone or the carer's mobile phone), and many 
providers use this function. The target is for providers to achieve 90% of their visits 
logged correctly using the client's home phone, but currently only 45% of providers 
are achieving this target (called their 'Aura' score), and performance has been noted 
to be as low as 25% of visits logged correctly. This means that a large proportion of 
visits are logged remotely, resulting in an increased risk of incorrect or fictitious visit 
data. These Aura performance figures were not reported to senior management for 
their consideration in terms of the potential safeguarding and financial irregularity 
issues associated with high volumes of manually logged visits. 
From the providers reviewed during the audit, it was clear that whilst the Quality and 
Contracts Team raise poor ETMS performance at annual monitoring visits, there was 
insufficient evidence of consistent follow through on improvement actions or issuing 
of default notices where serious provider performance concerns remain.  
The audit established there was only ad-hoc review of ETMS reports and 
management overrides of the time recording. The audit identified examples where 
the ETMA data showed conflicts that should have been followed up or reviewed due 
to the risk of fraud or potential safeguarding issues. 
The audit has highlighted throughout improvements are needed to strengthen the 
communication and working practices between the different teams involved in the 
payments to providers process. 
 
EE OCS - IT Disaster Recovery 2014/15 
 
 

Opinion: AMBER 24 November 2014 
Total: 06 Priority 1 = 0 Priority 2 = 06 
Current Status:  
Implemented 01 
Due not yet actioned 0 

Page 60



AG7 

Partially complete 0 
Not yet Due 05 

 
Overall Conclusion 
 

There is a corporate Business Continuity Steering Group (BCSG) which has 
representatives from each directorate, including ICT. This joined up approach 
ensures that ICT disaster recovery plans are not developed in isolation and reflect 
corporate priorities and objectives as agreed by the BCSG. Each IT application is 
given a priority level based on its importance to delivering critical services as 
identified through the business continuity programme. ICT disaster recovery plans 
are geared around the recovery of Priority 1 applications (most critical), although 
remaining applications can also be recovered within the technical environment that is 
currently in place. 

A list of all Priority 1 applications is held by ICT in the Application Recovery 
Checklist, which is a key document that would be required to recover these 
applications in the event of a disaster. However, we found that the document was 
approved in February 2012 and is not subject to a regular review. The list of Priority 
1 applications should also be agreed between ICT and BCSG on an annual basis. 

As part of the migration of the data centre to Specialist Computer Centres (SCC) in 
Birmingham, ICT have fully considered and implemented measures for disaster 
recovery. The production environment is housed in a primary data centre, known as 
Cole Valley (CV1), in Birmingham and disaster recovery facilities have been built in a 
secondary data centre known as Lyndon Place. The two data centres are 
approximately 3.5 miles apart. We have reviewed the network links between County 
Hall, CV1 and Lyndon Place and found they are resilient, with alternate routing 
available should a primary link fail.  

There are documented plans and procedures for disaster recovery, however, these 
need to be reviewed and updated to reflect the data centre migration and the recent 
ICT re-structure. 

A number of DR tests have been undertaken in the last four months, ranging from a 
table-top exercise to a technical recovery of the secondary data centre. A full test is 
also planned as part of an ongoing DR project that was initiated during the data 
centre migration project. The DR project is currently behind schedule, as according 
to the Project Initiation Document the full test should have taken place in September 
2014. However, the ICT Services Manager has confirmed that he has recently re-
allocated responsibility for the project and it is deemed to be a priority. The controls 
around testing can be improved by using test plans to clearly set out the scope and 
objectives of each test and by ensuring a formal report is produced at the end of 
each test. Users should also be involved in the testing process to confirm that 
recovered applications can be accessed and used from the DR facility. 

Backups of corporate systems are taken to both disk and tape media, with copies 
being transferred “off-site” to Lyndon Place on a daily basis.  In addition, all business 
critical systems i.e. those categorised as Priority 0 (infrastructure) and Priority 1, are 
mirrored between CV1 and Lyndon Place.  This mirroring of systems reduces the 
level of reliance on tape backups, which can be unreliable, and also ensures a 
shorter recovery time. 

Page 61



AG7 

CEF - Framework-i Application Review 2014/15 
 
 

Opinion: GREEN 26 November 2014 
Total: 02 Priority 1 = 0 Priority 2 = 02 
Current Status:  
Implemented 02 
Due not yet actioned 0 
Partially complete 0 
Not yet Due 0 

 
All actions have been implemented. 
 
Overall Conclusion 
 
Logical security is well maintained with unique user accounts and a strong password 
policy that enforce a regular password change.  New starters are requested by line 
management and any amendments to the roles required are also managed in this 
way.  There are two areas that could be enhanced by sharing the SAP HR report 
received by ICT with the Framework-i support team.  This would provide a pro-active 
stance in ensuring that any leavers have their account locked on a timely basis and 
any members of staff moving between teams have their roles adjusted accordingly to 
prevent unnecessary access to areas no longer required. 

Access rights have been comprehensively reviewed to ensure they are associated to 
a particular work role and are appropriate for the requirement of the job.  Each child 
is associated with a particular key worker who is a member of the designated service 
team and reports are produced on a regular basis to ensure that there are no areas 
that have not been allocated correctly. 

A comprehensive audit log is held with the detail captured from the date the system 
went live in 2008.  There are a number of standard reports available with the ability 
for others to be written as required, utilising filters and preferences for tailored 
reporting. Although containing a large amount of data there are no current issues 
regarding storage or operational degradation of system performance. 

Data input into the application is well controlled with a large number of drop-down 
pick lists as well as an automatic client number generator.  Free flow text is narrowed 
down to the client name and notes box.  Reports are run on a regular basis to 
identify inconsistent data entry or duplicate entries where clients may be known by 
more than one name. 

Backup copies are automatically taken on a daily basis with restore facilities able to 
restore from a given point in time as required. The recent migration of the data 
centre has enabled the whole system to be tested and restored.   

Full support to the system is provided through a contractual agreement with the 
software provider, Corelogic, who take an active role in ensuring the application runs 
efficiently. 

Page 62



AG7 

  

EE OCS - PSN Code of Connection Review 2014/15 
 
 

Opinion: Amber 26 November 2014 
Total: 13 Priority 1 = 0 Priority 2 = 13 
Current Status:  
Implemented 0 
Due not yet actioned 0 
Partially complete 0 
Not yet Due 13 

 
Overall Conclusion 
 

All public sector organisations wanting to connect to the PSN are required to comply 
with the PSN Code of Connection (CoCo).  ICT have run a project to co-ordinate the 
work for PSN compliance and it has delivered the PSN CoCo submission, which was 
made on the 13th August 2014.  This submission has been reviewed by the PSN 
Authority and they are seeking clarification on certain points before issuing a 
certificate of compliance. ICT are preparing a response to the PSN Authority and this 
will include remediation plans for known security weaknesses and vulnerabilities. 
These plans should be appropriately managed and monitored through to 
implementation.  

The ICT Information Services Manager has responsibility for PSN Compliance, 
although moving forward this is likely to be devolved to the new Information 
Governance and Compliance Manager.  The PSN Code Template, which is 
completed by all applicants, was found to be duly signed-off by the Chief Executive 
Officer, Chief Finance Officer and Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO). 

We tested a sample of controls against the PSN submission and confirmed that the 
following controls are operating as reported:  

• A high-level network schematic has been documented; 

• PSN equipment is housed in physically secure areas; 

• PSN users sign an acceptable use agreement; 

• A business case has been documented and signed-off for using Active 
Content; 

• A patch management policy has been documented and approved; 

• The requirements for a robust access control policy are met;  

• PSN emails are only routed through to secure domains; 

• Two-factor authentication has been implemented for MyMail; 

• There is a documented and approved Removable Media Policy; and 

• Wireless networks have been security tested. 

However, the following exceptions were noted: 

Page 63



AG7 

• There are a number of corporate ICT policies referenced in the PSN 
submission that are either out of date or not published on the Intranet; 

• The creation of PSN user accounts is not being undertaken in accordance 
with agreed procedures;  

• There is no confirmation that all users have completed the e-learning training 
on the Acceptable Use of IT and Data Protection; 

• Microsoft Office Trust Centre settings are not enforced using Group Policy 
and can thus be changed by users on their local machines; 

• There is no evidence that firewalls at the PSN and Internet gateways are 
EAL4 assured; 

• Firewall rule bases are not being reviewed at the agreed intervals; 

• Users are not prevented from copying data to non-Council owned removable 
media devices; and 

• Auto-run is not disabled. 

IT Health Check (ITHC) reviews were undertaken in July 2014 and incorporated an 
on-site penetration test and vulnerability assessment and an external penetration 
test. The tests, which were undertaken by an appropriately accredited supplier, 
identified a number of configuration weaknesses and vulnerabilities that are in the 
process of being addressed by ICT. 

 
 
 
  

Page 64



AG7 

CEF - Church Cowley School 
 
AMBER 
8 priority 2 management actions - all implemented.  

An audit was undertaken at the request of the Finance Business Partner following 
concerns over financial management. 

 

Overall Conclusion 

The assurance level has been concluded as Amber. There is generally a good 
system of internal control in place and the majority of risks are being effectively 
managed. However some action is required to improve controls. 

 

 

Page 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



Division(s):  N/A 
 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 14 JANUARY 2015 
 
SECOND PROGRESS ON THE ACTIONS IN THE 2013-14 ANNUAL 

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 
 

Report by Head of Law & Governance 
 

Introduction 
 
1. Audit & Governance Committee approved the Annual Governance Statement 

(AGS) for 2013/14 in July 2014.  The AGS lists six 'Actions' to be carried out 
in 2014/15.  Progress on these actions was reported at the last meeting of this 
Committee in November.  This report updates the first report.  It is the second 
of three progress reports. 

 
The Progress Report 

 
2. Annex 1 gives the ‘First Progress Report on the Six AGS Actions’ for 2014/15.  

Progress has been made on all of the six AGS Actions, though there is limited 
change since the report two months ago. 

 
Financial and Staff Implications 

 
3. There are none. 
 

Equalities Implications 
 
4. There are none. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
5. The Audit & Governance Committee is RECOMMENDED to note the 

progress on the AGS Actions. 
 
 
PETER CLARK 
Head of Law & Governance 
 
Background papers:  The Annual Governance Statement 2013/14, which is at the 
back of our Annual Statement of Accounts for that year 
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/sites/default/files/folders/documents/aboutyourc
ouncil/accestoinformation/StatementofAccounts2013-14.pdf 
 
Contact Officer:  David Illingworth (01865) 323972 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 67



AG8 

Annex 1 - Second Progress Report on the Six AGS Actions 
 
Action 
 

Progress 
 
Changes since the First report are underlined 
 

1. Data Transfers and Security 
(on-going from 2012/13) 
 
Ensuring that where appropriate, 
data is transmitted securely 
either using ‘Government 
Connect’, or Egress Switch email 
and file transfer software or 
another secure software system. 
 

 
• The authority now holds 250 PSN email 

licenced accounts (replacing Government 
Connect GCSx accounts) and 1,511 Egress 
Switch licences, in addition to CJSM 
accounts 

 
• A comprehensive communications plan has 

been drafted and is now in operation so that 
messages about sending data securely are 
consistently reinforced  

 
• Guidance has been drafted and issued to 

staff on the correct system to use when 
communicating with other public partners, 
Schools and voluntary organisations. 

 

• Targeted emails have also been sent to 
licence and account holders to ensure they 
are using the systems appropriately 

 
• All staff that have PSN secure email 

accounts have signed up to the PSN 
Acceptable User Policy (AUP).  

 
• At the beginning of 2014 a new PSN Email 

system was delivered, with training to 
support account-holders in the use of the 
new system 

 
• ‘Tell Us Once’ teams in Registration Service 

and CSC were migrated to PSN in May 2014 
 

• The ICT Newsletter that was handed out at 
this year’s Staff Conference included details 
about the use of secure email. We also take 
the opportunity to remind staff of the need to 
communicate securely and the arrangements 
in place at our regular on site, support visits. 

 
 
 
 

Page 68



AG8 

Action 
 

Progress 
 
Changes since the First report are underlined 
 

2. Data Quality (on-going from 
2013/14) 
 
Agree, implement and report on 
the performance of a Data 
Quality Strategy within the 
organisation and with third 
parties 
 

 
A revised version of the Data Quality Strategy 
has been produced and this is being taken 
through the various stages of approval: 
 
• Firstly by the Information Governance Group 

(on 28th October 2014); then by the  
 
• Corporate Governance Assurance Group 

(15th September 2014) – with a specific focus 
on the proposed organisational and policy 
changes required to embed Data Quality 
within the organisation; and then by 

 
• Chief Executive’s Office Departmental 

Leadership Team (8th January 2015); and if 
this is referred on, to the 

 
• County Council Management Team 
 

3. Commercial Services Board 
(on-going from 2013/14) 
 
The Board’s framework should 
be embedded and implemented 
effectively.  This will provide an 
on-going robust overview of the 
adequacy of procurement and 
contract management 
arrangements across the 
organisation including contract 
performance and visibility of 
issues/risks.    
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The Board continues to meet monthly.  
 
The pipeline of commercial activity continues to 
be monitored. The business case review group 
a subset of the Board has added further to its 
capacity to review the commercial aspects of 
business cases. The Board’s sponsorship of 
Contract Management Framework 
implementation has led to an improved picture 
of baseline activity for the Platinum group of 
contracts with 22 or 26 assessments complete - 
although not all have been signed off/action 
plans developed. 
 
Over 240 people have identified themselves as 
contract managers and of these 114 have been 
validated for one of the contract management 
training events.  
 
The first “Effective Contract Management” 
module is now live following a successful pilot 
with 8 training cohorts running through to March 
15.  
 

Page 69



AG8 

Action 
 

Progress 
 
Changes since the First report are underlined 
 
Embedding the Boards work and re-enforcing its 
role and purpose continues to be challenging 
and further work on this is being undertaken, 
particularly by supporting the development of a 
more consistent approach to commissioning. 
 
Work is underway to look at how the 
commissioning cycle and the Commercial 
Services Board fit into the wider context.  
Further work is required and an action plan is 
being rolled out.  The Commercial Services 
Board will report to CCMT by 31st March 2015. 
 

4. Business Continuity 
 
a. Undertake a review of 
Business Continuity processes, 
guidance documents and 
templates to ensure that they 
reflect contracted services and 
rationalised process. 
 
b. Ensure that appropriate BC 
toolkits, training and testing 
information is available to staff 
and managers.  
 
c. Ensure that all necessary 
plans exist, can easily be 
accessed on a central database 
and are up to date and realistic. 
 
d. Ensure that plans are updated 
when there is organisational 
change, estate rationalisation or 
increasing flexible or agile 
working. 
 
e. Ensure that business 
continuity arrangements are 
reviewed and if necessary 
changed when commissioning or 
externalising services. 
 
f. Ensure that Tier 3 managers 
sign off the plans. 

 
Good progress is being made within business 
continuity with a new Business Continuity and 
Resilience Officer starting in the organisation in 
July 2014 to undertake a review of business 
continuity processes and the relationship of this 
area to audit, assurance and directorates. 
 
A review of business continuity processes is 
underway using Good Practice principles, 
starting with consultation with directorate and 
service leads which will inform the drafting of a 
new suite of guidance and templates by early 
2015.   A review of directorate and corporate 
extraordinary meetings plans is underway to 
ensure consistency of approach throughout. 
 
A new joint emergency and business continuity 
programme will be launched by the end of the 
current year, offering training and exercise 
opportunities to individuals and key groups 
using online, table-top and immersive exercise 
techniques. 
 
The new BC & Resilience Officer has made 
good progress working with the Business 
Continuity Steering Group Members to review 
Group 1 service BC plans and to start to build a 
new system for the collation and management of 
these.  The new system should enable the 
managers to review plans in a timely way and in 
response to structural or organisational change 
to ensure that they remain current and reflect 

Page 70



AG8 

Action 
 

Progress 
 
Changes since the First report are underlined 
 

 risk, service priorities and desired return 
schedules. 
 
Overall, steady progress in being made to 
review requirements and to work with 
directorates to deliver new systems that reflect 
organisational priorities. 
 
Extended CCMT were involved in an 
Emergency Planning exercise in December 
2014. 
 

5. Externalisation of Human 
Resources and Finance 
Services 
 
Setting up, implementing and 
embedding our new operating 
model includes extensive working 
with another public body and 
other work.  The following action 
is required as a result. 
 
Develop for the approval of 
CCMT and the Audit & 
Governance Committee a robust 
assurance framework for the 
governance and systems of 
internal control for the planned 
externalisation of services 
including explicitly those where 
there may be a transfer in full or 
in part of key control processes. 
 
Risks arising as our partners 
access our data and other 
information assets will need to be 
explicitly considered. 
 
The output of this process is to 
be reviewed by CGAG, approved 
by CCMT and Audit & 
Governance Committee. 
 

 
An extensive programme of work to ensure the 
successful transfer of Human Resources and 
Finance Services to Hampshire County Council 
began in September 2014.  
 
There is an established governance framework 
for the project.  The Chief Finance Officer and 
Chief HR Officer attend regular Joint Board 
Meetings with Hampshire County Council.  A 
Project Initiation Document (PID) has been 
signed by both authorities to clearly identify the 
deliverables and scope of the project. Within 
OCC, the Externalisation Board comprising the 
Sponsors and other senior officers oversees the 
project and receives reports from relevant 
workstream leads, including any risks and 
issues that they have highlighted.  
 
During the initial design phase of the project, a 
series of workshops identified all the operating 
differences in processes between the two 
authorities, including any internal control issues. 
The risks and issues log is a fundamental part of 
the project management arrangements and is 
reviewed frequently at both workstream and 
Board level.  Any proposed changes to internal 
controls are considered and agreed by the 
Finance Leadership Team.  
 
Work over the next few months will include 
continued development, agreement and build of 
future processes and technical solutions, where 
security of data issues will be considered.  The 

Page 71



AG8 

Action 
 

Progress 
 
Changes since the First report are underlined 
 
Business Readiness work stream now underway 
will ensure that Directorates and schools 
understand and are prepared for any changes 
as a consequence of the Project. 
 
Following the completion of the initial design 
phase there is now agreement over the 
functions that are in scope for transferring to the 
IBC.  There are a small number of functions that 
have been identified as being out of scope 
currently; as a result a new "Impacts" project, is 
being scoped to look at the management and 
operation of these retained functions going 
forward.  The "Impacts" project will operate 
under the same internal governance board 
arrangements as the Externalisation 
programme.   
 

6. Partnerships 
 
To undertake a review of 
governance arrangements in 
relation to key strategic 
partnerships where the council is 
a formal member. 
 

 
The Council is now necessarily involved in a 
complex system of Partnerships.  Steps are 
being taken to ensure that Councillors and staff 
are aware of and understand these new 
arrangements: 
 
• The Head of Law & Governance and the 

Head of Policy gave a briefing in July that 
was open to all councillors.  Staff were also 
briefed, in August. 

 
• A report was presented to the full meeting of 

the County Council on 9th September 
outllning the work being done by various 
strategic partnerships.  A similar report was 
put to the Oxfordshire Partnership, with 
verbal updates where necessary, on 2nd 
October. 

 
• The report to Council outlines the 

governance arrangements for each of the 
partnerships.  Next year’s report will look at 
the formal and informal feedback 
mechanisms. 

 
 

Page 72



AG8 

Action 
 

Progress 
 
Changes since the First report are underlined 
 
• Governance arrangements for the 

Environment and Waste Partnership were to 
be reviewed in October, but will now be 
considered at the January 2015 meeting. 

Details of the main partnerships that the 
Council is involved in were set out in the first 
progress report to this Committee, in 
November 2014. 

Since then functions of the ‘Spatial Planning 
and Infrastructure Partnership’ have been 
incorporated into the Oxfordshire Growth 
Board.  The Oxfordshire Growth Board is a 
Joint Committee charged with the delivery, on 
behalf of the Local Enterprise Partnership, of 
the projects agreed in the City Deal and 
Growth Deal that fall to the councils - working 
collaboratively - to deliver.  It also exists to 
advise on matters of collective interest, to seek 
agreement on local priorities and influence 
relevant local, regional and national bodies. 

The draft Terms of Reference for the Growth 
Board are attached at Annex 2. 
 

 
 
 

Page 73



AG8 

Annex 2 – Draft Terms of Reference – Oxfordshire Growth Board 
 
1.0 Governance 
 
1.1 The Oxfordshire Growth Board (the joint committee) includes the local authorities 
within the Oxfordshire LEP comprising, Cherwell District Council, Oxford City 
Council, South Oxfordshire District Council, Vale of White Horse District Council, 
West Oxfordshire District Council and Oxfordshire County Council.  
 
1.2 It will also include co-opted non-voting named members from those organisations 
listed at 4.4 below. In addition, when considering matters that sit under the purview 
of the Local Transport Board then Network Rail and the Highways Agency will have 
the right to attend the Growth Board as non-voting investment partners.  
 
1.3 The Oxfordshire Economic Growth Board is a Joint Committee under s101 (5), 
102 Local Government Act 1972 and s9EB Local Government Act 2000 and 
pursuant to the Local Authorities (Arrangement for the Discharge of Functions) 
(England) Regulations 2012.  
 
1.4 The Committee will be hosted under local government arrangements and this will 
be rotated in accordance with the arrangements for the Chairman (see Section 8.1).  
 
2.0 Accountable Body 
 
2.1 The Accountable Body for the Growth Board is Oxfordshire County Council 
which will provide Section 151 and Monitoring Officer roles to the Committee.  
 
2.2 The County Council’s Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer) in conjunction 
with the LEP Chief Executive will provide the Growth Board with a quarterly financial 
report. This report will provide the Board with an overview of the funds spent, funds 
committed against funds allocated  
 
2.3 Programme management will be provided by the Growth Board Programme 
Manager and will include milestones and outcomes achieved and where necessary, 
ensure that action plans are put in place to address any concerns.  
 
2.4 For those programmes and funding streams where another local authority is the 
Accountable Body, e.g. the Enterprise Zone, the relevant Section 151 Officer will 
provide the financial and programme performance information to the County 
Council’s Chief Finance Officer to enable a complete picture to be presented to the 
Growth Board.  
 
2.5 The Local Transport Board Assurance Framework will be the basis on which the 
appraisal, assessment and prioritisation for proposed Local Growth Fund projects 
and future growth programmes will be undertaken, which may be revised by the 
Growth Board as wished, subject to approval by the DfT 
 

Page 74



AG8 

3.0 Purpose of the Oxfordshire Growth Board 
 
3.1 To facilitate and enable collaboration between local authorities on economic 
development, strategic planning and growth.  
 
3.2 To deliver cross-boundary programmes of work including City Deal, Growth Deal, 
Strategic Economic Plan and Local Transport Board programmes, within government 
timescales, including agreeing the detailed contents of specific priorities, plans, 
projects and programmes.  
 
3.3 To approve and monitor the implementation of a detailed work programme as 
laid out in the City Deal, Strategic Economic Plan and Local Transport Board 
programmes together with any future Growth Deals or other programmes as agreed.  
 
3.4 To bid for the allocation of resources to support the above purposes. For the 
avoidance of doubt these terms of reference are not to be read as incorporating any 
non-Executive functions and each constituent Authority shall retain the capability to 
exercise all executive functions generally and specifically in relation to economic 
development, strategic spatial planning and strategic transport planning. Further, 
these terms of reference are not to be read as entitling the Board to bind, either 
financially or contractually, any constituent Authority.”  
 
4.0 Membership 
 
4.1 As the Joint Committee is discharging executive functions then the appointed 
person must be from the Executive. There should be one member from each 
constituent authority.  
 
4.2 Each constituent authority shall appoint a substitute (also being an executive 
member). The substitute member shall have the same rights of speaking and voting 
at the meetings as the member for whom the substitution is made.  
 
4.3 Subject to the legal right of the Joint Committee to appoint a Chairman and Vice 
Chairman of its choice each year the proposed protocol is that there will be a rotating 
Chairman and Vice Chairman as set out in table 8.2 below.  
 
4.4 Other non-voting members as required for good linkages with the Local 
Enterprise Partnership shall be a single named-position representative from the 
bodies as detailed below:  
 
• LEP : Chairman  
• Oxford University  
• Skills Board  
• Harwell/Diamond Light Source  
• LEP Business Rep  
• LEP Oxford City Business Rep  
• Homes and Communities Agency  
 

Page 75



AG8 

4.5 When considering matters that sit under the purview of the Local Transport 
Board then a single representative of Network Rail and the Highways Agency will 
have the right to attend the Growth Board as non-voting investment partners  
 
5.0 Voting 
 
5.1 One member one vote for each constituent authority member although members 
intend to agree matters on a unanimous basis where possible.  
 
5.2 Normal rules as to declarations of interest to be applied to local authority 
members in accordance with the respective Council’s Code of Conduct.  
 
6.0 Quorum & Safeguard  
 
6.1 The quorum for a meeting shall be four voting members.  
 
6.2 Where the effect of a particular proposition, if adopted by the Committee, would 
be to give rise to contractual or financial implications for any constituent authority, 
then a protocol will be established where the expectation would be that the vote of 
the member appointed by that constituent authority, in favour of the proposition, 
would be required. In respect of other matters, all other voting will be on a normal 
majority basis.  
 
6.3 When considering matters that sit under the purview of the Local Transport 
Board, this protocol will apply to the vote of the member appointed by the County 
Council.  
 
7.0 Functions 
 
7.1.1 The opportunity provided by establishing the Growth Board and aligning the 
strategic meetings including SPIP and the LTB is to streamline the governance 
arrangements and incorporate the combined terms of reference under a single 
governing body:  
 
From the Spatial Planning & Infrastructure Partnership  
 
• To provide a forum for partnership working and collaboration on spatial planning, 
economic development, housing, transport, and general infrastructure issues arising 
at regional and sub-regional level;  
 
• To lead and co-ordinate liaison with the Local Enterprise Partnership on 
Oxfordshire wide issues and support the LEP in the identification of priorities and 
development of investment strategies and economic plans for Oxfordshire;  
 
• To lead and co-ordinate liaison with the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) to 
develop plans to enhance Oxfordshire share of HCA development programmes and 
contribute to any related interaction with Government agencies;  
 

Page 76



AG8 

• To lead on production of joint work on cross border issues to ensure partners meet 
the requirements of the Duty to Cooperate and wider national policy; 
 
• To lead and coordinate the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) process on 
regeneration and housing issues leading to the production of the Local Investment 
Plan (LIP) and contribute to any related interaction with Government agencies;  
 
• To seek agreement on local priorities and targets and advise partners on matters of 
collective interest in the fields of activity listed above;  
 
• To seek agreement on alignment between national and regional and local funding 
streams in the fields of activity listed above and prioritise competitive funding bids;  
 
• To assess whether spatial planning, infrastructure and public services are 
integrated and make recommendations to encourage this.  
 
From the Local Transport Board  
 
• To have the role of prioritising transport schemes to be funded from devolved 
funding sources, not already within the remit of the Local Transport Authority, to 
ensure that decisions are made in one place and supported by all relevant partners 
and stakeholders;  
• To have the ability to comment on wider consultations, such as the Local Transport 
Plan, and funding investment decisions from national agencies, e.g. Network Rail, 
Highways Agency, where these have a strategic impact on the local transport 
network;  
 
From the City Deal and Growth Board  
 
• To oversee the delivery of all of the local government aspects of City Deal, Growth 
Deal (where local authorities are the delivery partners) and to have oversight of the 
LEP Work Programme;  
 
• Prioritisation of the investment in the Escalator Hubs, the allocation of funding from 
City Deal and the accountable body for each project;  
 
• Establishing the City and relevant Growth Deal projects infrastructure programme 
and agreement of the contribution level from either retained business rates or the 
proposed funding streams;  
 
• Responsible for prioritising the delivery of schemes to be funded through the City 
Deal infrastructure fund, for transport, housing or economic development schemes;  
 
• Agreement to the work programme for the City Deal, relevant Growth Deal projects 
and in support of the Strategic Economic Plan..  
 

Page 77



AG8 

8.0 Meetings  
 
8.1 The Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Growth Board will be elected at the first 
meeting but are expected to follow the arrangements as set out in paragraph 8.2. 
 
8.2 The lead authority for convening meetings will be that of the elected Chairman 
and it will provide Secretary/Clerk support to the Board. Meetings shall be held on a 
bi-monthly basis, meetings may be called as and when required to ensure that 
critical timescales are met. 
 
Year  Chairman  Vice chairman  
2014/15  West Oxfordshire District 

Council  
Cherwell District Council  

2015/16  Cherwell District Council  Oxfordshire County 
Council  

2016/17  Oxfordshire County 
Council  

Oxford City Council  

2017/18  Oxford City Council  South Oxfordshire District 
Council  

2018/19  South Oxfordshire District 
Council  

Vale of White Horse 
District Council  

2019/20  Vale of White Horse DC  West Oxfordshire DC  
 
 
9.0 Secretariat and Support 
 
9.1 The secretariat and support will be provided by the existing SPIP Executive 
Officer Group, now known as the Growth Board Executive. Other investment 
partners will be involved as appropriate, e.g. Homes and Communities Agency, 
Environment Agency, Highways Agency, Network Rail; to advise on the investment 
and work programme.  
 
9.2 The Group will be chaired by the lead authority (as in previous SPIP 
arrangements). In the first instance this will be West Oxfordshire.  
 
10.0 Scrutiny Arrangements 
 
10.1 Decisions made by the Committee shall be subject to the scrutiny arrangements 
of each constituent authority.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 78



Contents at a glance

Government and 
economic news

Accounting, auditing 
and Governance

Regulation news

Key Questions for the 
Audit Committee

Find out more

Introduction 
L`ak�k][lgj�Zja]Õf_�ak�gf]�g^�l`]�oYqk�l`Yl�o]�`gh]�lg�[gflafm]�lg�kmhhgjl�qgm�Yf\�
qgmj�gj_YfakYlagf�af�Yf�]fnajgfe]fl�l`Yl�ak�[gfklYfldq�[`Yf_af_�Yf\�]ngdnaf_&
Al�[gn]jk�akkm]k�o`a[`�eYq�`Yn]�Yf�aehY[l�gf�qgmj�gj_YfakYlagf$�l`]�Dg[Yd�
_gn]jfe]fl�k][lgj�Yf\�l`]�Ym\alk�l`Yl�o]�mf\]jlYc]&�L`]�hmZda[�k][lgj�Ym\al�
kh][aYdaklk�o`g�ljYfk^]jj]\�^jge�l`]�9m\al�;geeakkagf�^gje�hYjl�g^�=QÌk�
fYlagfYd�?gn]jfe]fl�Yf\�HmZda[�K][lgj� ?HK!�l]Ye&�L`]aj�]pl]fkan]�hmZda[�k][lgj�
cfgod]\_]�ak�fgo�kmhhgjl]\�Zq�l`]�ja[`�j]kgmj[]�g^�oa\]j�]ph]jlak]�Y[jgkk�=QÌk�
MC�Yf\�afl]jfYlagfYd�Zmkaf]kk&�L`ak�Zja]Õf_�j]Ö][lk�l`ak$�Zjaf_af_�lg_]l`]j�fgl�
gfdq�l][`fa[Yd�akkm]k�j]d]nYfl�lg�l`]�dg[Yd�_gn]jfe]fl�k][lgj�Zml�oa\]j�eYll]jk�g^�
hgl]flaYd�afl]j]kl�lg�qgm�Yf\�qgmj�gj_YfakYlagf&�
Dafck�lg�o`]j]�qgm�[Yf�Õf\�gml�egj]�gf�Yfq�g^�l`]�Yjla[d]k�^]Ylmj]\�[Yf�Z]�^gmf\�
Yl�l`]�]f\�g^�l`]�Zja]Õf_$�Yk�o]dd�Yk�kge]�]pYehd]k�g^�Yj]Yk�o`]j]�=Q�[Yf�hjgna\]�
kmhhgjl�lg�Dg[Yd�9ml`gjalq�Zg\a]k&�O]�`gh]�l`Yl�qgm�Õf\�l`]�Zja]Õf_�af^gjeYlan]�
Yf\�k`gmd\�l`ak�jYak]�Yfq�akkm]k�l`Yl�qgm�ogmd\�dac]�lg�\ak[mkk�^mjl`]j�hd]Yk]�\g�
[gflY[l�qgmj�dg[Yd�Ym\al�l]Ye&

Local Government Audit 

November 2014

Agenda Item 9

Page 79



2  November 2014

Government and economic news

EY Item Club: Autumn 2014 Forecast

AL=E�;dmZ�ak�l`]�gfdq�fgf_gn]jfe]flYd�][gfgea[�^gj][Yklaf_�
_jgmh�lg�mk]�l`]�@E�Lj]Ykmjq�eg\]d�g^�l`]�MC�][gfgeq$�
af\]h]f\]fl�g^�Yfq�hgdala[Yd$�][gfgea[�gj�Zmkaf]kk�ZaYk&�
L`]�9mlmef�*(),�j]hgjl�kmeeYjak]k�l`]�dYl]kl�imYjl]jdq�^gj][Ykl�
Yf\�_an]k�=QÌk�Ykk]kke]fl&

L`]�GFKÌk�j][]fl�j]nakagfk�lg�l`]�MCÌk�`aklgja[Yd�][gfgea[�\YlY�
`Yn]�_an]f�Y�n]jq�\a^^]j]fl�h]jkh][lan]�gf�l`]�k`Yh]�g^�l`]�
j][]kkagf�Yf\�kmZk]im]fl�j][gn]jq&�

;gfkme]j�kh]f\af_�j]eYafk�kmZ\m]\�Zq�^Yddaf_�j]Yd�oY_]k$�o`a[`�
`Yk�`]dh]\�lg�c]]h�afÖYlagf�Yl�ZYq&�AfÖYlagf�Yk�e]Ykmj]\�Zq�l`]�
;HA�oYk�bmkl�)&*��af�K]hl]eZ]j$�l`]�dgo]kl�j]Y\af_�af�Õn]�q]Yjk�
Yf\�fafl`�km[[]kkan]�egfl`�l`Yl�al�`Yk�Z]]f�Z]dgo�*�&�O`adkl�
^Yddaf_�hja[]k�^gj�^gg\�Yf\�h]ljgd�`Yn]�hdYq]\�Y�jgd]�af�c]]haf_�
afÖYlagf�\gof$�mf\]jdqaf_�hja[]�hj]kkmj]k�Yj]�Ydkg�o]dd�[gflYaf]\&�
Kaf[]�[gfkme]j�kh]f\af_�`Yk�Z]]f�kmZ\m]\$�Zmkaf]kk�afn]kle]fl�
`Yk�fgo�lYc]f�gn]j�Yk�l`]�]f_af]�g^�j][gn]jq3�oal`�[YhalYd�
kh]f\af_�Y[[gmflaf_�^gj�Ydegkl�`Yd^�l`]�jak]�af�?<H�af�l`]�hYkl�
q]Yj&�MC�?<H�`Yk�Z]]f�j]nak]\�mh$�e]Yfaf_�al�Y[lmYddq�hYkk]\�alk�
hj]nagmk�`a_`%hgafl�af�*()+$�Yf\�l`Yl�gmlhml�ak�fgo�o]dd�YZgn]�l`]�
*((0�h]Yc&�

L`ak�ha[lmj]�ak�egj]�[gfkakl]fl�oal`�l`]�kljgf_�_jgol`�af�
]ehdgqe]fl&�L`]�mhoYj\�j]nakagfk�lg�Zmkaf]kk�afn]kle]fl�`Yn]�
Z]]f�hYjla[mdYjdq�hjgfgmf[]\3�e]Yfaf_�l`]�k[gh]�^gj�[Yl[`�mh�
ak�d]kk�l`Yf�hj]nagmkdq�l`gm_`l&�<]khal]�l`]�_jgoaf_�jakck�Yf\�
mf[]jlYafla]k$�=Q�Al]e�[dmZ�ak�hjgb][laf_�?<H�_jgol`�g^�+&)��af�
*(),$�^gddgo]\�Zq�Y�kda_`l�]Ykaf_�lg�*&,��_jgol`�af�*()-�Yf\�*&+��
af�*().$�Yf\�l`]f�Y�eg\]kl�mhla[c�af�*()/&

Contracting out public services to the private sector

Af�l`]�dYkl�Zja]Õf_�o]�[gfka\]j]\�l`]�j]khgfk]�g^�l`]�@gmk]�g^�
;geegfk�;geeall]]�g^�HmZda[�9[[gmflk� l`]�ËH9;Ì!�lg�]na\]f[]�
af[dm\af_�l`]�FYlagfYd�9m\al�G^Õ[]�j]hgjl�ËL`]�jgd]�g^�eYbgj�
[gfljY[lgjk�af�l`]�\]dan]jq�g^�hmZda[�k]jna[]kÌ�Yf\�kmZeakkagfk�
^jge�[]fljYd�_gn]jfe]fl�Zg\a]k&

L`]�H9;�eY\]�Y�jYf_]�g^�j][gee]f\Ylagfk�af�^gmj�c]q�Yj]Yk&�
Af�l`]�hj]nagmk�Zja]Õf_�o]�dggc]\�Yl�[gfljY[l�eYfY_]e]fl�Yf\�
\]dan]jq&�O]�oadd�fgo�[gfka\]j�;YhYZadalq$�LjYfkhYj]f[q�Yf\�
=l`a[Yd�KlYf\Yj\k&

Capability

L`]�H9;�^gmf\�l`Yl$�g^l]f$�l`]j]�ak�Y�dY[c�g^�]ph]jlak]�oal`af�
[]fljYd�_gn]jfe]fl�lg�]pljY[l�l`]�_j]Yl]kl�nYdm]�^jge�[gfljY[laf_�
oal`�hjanYl]�hjgna\]jk&

O]�g^l]f�Õf\�l`Yl�Zgl`�hmZda[�Yf\�hjanYl]�k][lgj�gj_YfakYlagfk�
dY[c�[d]Yj�daf]k�g^�j]khgfkaZadalq�^gj�[gfljY[l�eYfY_]e]fl$�
o`a[`�^Yddk�Z]lo]]f�hjg[mj]e]fl$�gh]jYlagfk�Yf\�ÕfYf[]�
^mf[lagfk&�9�_j]Yl]j�^g[mk�gf�[gfljY[l�_gn]jfYf[]�ogmd\�]fYZd]�
dg[Yd�Yml`gjala]k�lg�]fkmj]�l`Yl�Y[[gmflYZadalq�ak�[d]Yj�Yf\�l`Yl�
]ph]ja]f[]\�[gfljY[l�eYfY_]jk�`Yn]�l`]�f][]kkYjq�ljYafaf_�Yf\�
kcaddk�^gj�l`ak�aehgjlYfl�jgd]&

Transparency

;Yddk�^gj�af[j]Yk]\�ljYfkhYj]f[q�af[dm\]�j][gee]f\Ylagfk�l`Yl�
l`]�hmZda[�k][lgj�eYc]k�_j]Yl]j�mk]�g^�Ëgh]f%ZggcÌ�Y[[gmflaf_&�
L`ak�ak�kge]l`af_�o]�ogmd\�]f\gjk]$�]kh][aYddq�o`]j]�[gfljY[lk�
Yj]�[gfkljm[l]\�Yjgmf\�l`]�hmj[`Yk]�g^�ËafhmlkÌ�km[`�Yk�dYZgmj�gf�
Y�\Yadq�gj�`gmjdq�jYl]&

Page 80



3 November 2014  |

Government and economic news

>mjl`]jegj]$�o]�ogmd\�j][gee]f\�l`Yl�l`]�hmZda[�k][lgj�
[gfka\]jk�o`]l`]j�al�[Yf�hmj[`Yk]�k]jna[]k�ZYk]\�Yjgmf\�
gml[ge]k$�jYl`]j�l`Yf�afhmlk$�Yk�l`]k]�[Yf�`]dh�lg�eala_Yl]�l`]�
Zmq]jÌk�jakc�Yk�addmkljYl]\�Z]dgo2

Ethical standards

L`]�H9;�]eh`Ykak]\�l`]�nYdm]�g^�]^^][lan]�o`akld]Zdgoaf_�hgda[a]k&�
Gmj�]ph]ja]f[]�k`gok�l`Yl�eYfq�hjanYl]�k][lgj�kmhhda]jk�`Yn]�
o`akld]Zdgoaf_�hgda[a]k&�@go]n]j$�l`]k]�l]f\�fgl�lg�hjgna\]�Y�
\aj][l�dafc�^jge�l`]�hgl]flaYd�o`akld]Zdgo]j�lg�l`]�hmZda[�k][lgj�
Zmq]j$�kge]lae]k�j]\m[af_�l`]�]^^][lan]f]kk�g^�l`]k]�hgda[a]k&

@go]n]j$�af�gj\]j�^gj�o`akld]Zdgoaf_�lg�Z]�Y�ljmdq�]^^][lan]�
[gfljY[l�eYfY_]e]fl�lggd$�l`]�Zmq]j�f]]\k�lg�`Yn]�YhhjghjaYl]�
jgml]k�lg�hjgna\]�ja_`lk�g^�Y[[]kk�lg�Y�[gfljY[lgjÌk�]ehdgq]]k�Yk�
o]dd�Yk�alk�Y[[gmflaf_�j][gj\k$�hdmk�l`]�l]Yek�oal`�l`]�f][]kkYjq�
kcaddk�Yf\�]ph]ja]f[]�lg�afn]kla_Yl]�[gfljY[l�h]j^gjeYf[]&

Summary

9l�Y�lae]�o`]f�dg[Yd�Yml`gjala]k�[gflafm]�lg�dggc�^gj�kYnaf_k$�l`]�
H9;�J]hgjl�hjgna\]k�Y�lae]dq�j]eaf\]j�l`Yl�]^^][lan]�[gfljY[l�
eYfY_]e]fl�[Yf�Zgl`2

฀�:]�Y�e]Yfk�Zq�o`a[`�kYnaf_k�[Yf�Z]�Y[`a]n]\

@]dh�lg�aehjgn]�hmZda[�[gfÕ\]f[]�af�l`]�mk]�g^�hmZda[�^mf\k

Councils face a £5.8 billion shortfall in funding says LGA

L`]�Dg[Yd�?gn]jfe]fl�9kkg[aYlagf� D?9!�`Yk�hmZdak`]\�alk�>mlmj]�
>mf\af_�Gmldggc�*(),$�o`a[`�fgl]k�l`Yl�l`]�^mf\af_�_Yh$�[j]Yl]\�
Zq�Y�[geZafYlagf�g^�^mf\af_�[mlk�Yf\�kh]f\af_�hj]kkmj]k$�ak�
_jgoaf_�Yl�Yf�Yn]jY_]�jYl]�g^��*&)�Zaddagf�h]j�q]Yj&�Kh]f\af_�gf�
kg[aYd�[Yj]�Yf\�oYkl]�eYfY_]e]fl$�Zgl`�g^�o`a[`�`Yn]�ka_faÕ[Yfl�
klYlmlgjq�]d]e]flk$�ak�lYcaf_�mh�Yf�af[j]Ykaf_�hjghgjlagf�g^�l`]�
^mf\af_�YnYadYZd]�lg�[gmf[adk$�o`a[`�e]Yfk�l`Yl�Y[[gj\af_�lg�l`]�
D?9�eg\]d$�^mf\af_�^gj�gl`]j�[gmf[ad�k]jna[]k�oadd�\jgh�Zq�,+��
af�[Yk`�l]jek�Zq�l`]�]f\�g^�l`]�\][Y\]&�;gmf[ad�]ph]f\almj]�
`Yk�^Ydd]f�ka_faÕ[Yfldq�kaf[]�*()(Ç))�af�Ydd�Yj]Yk�gl`]j�l`Yf�
hmZda[�ljYfkhgjl$�[`ad\j]fÌk�kg[aYd�[Yj]$�Y\mdl�kg[aYd�[Yj]�Yf\�
oYkl]�eYfY_]e]fl�Yf\�gl`]j�]fnajgfe]flYd�k]jna[]k&�@go]n]j$�
Ykkmeaf_�[gfkakl]fl�k]jna[]�d]n]dk$�Yf\�lYcaf_�aflg�Y[[gmfl�[gkl�
\jan]jk�Yf\�Ykkme]\�]^Õ[a]f[q�d]n]dk$�l`]�D?9�eg\]d�hj]\a[lk�
l`Yl�lglYd�]ph]f\almj]�oadd�jak]�^jge��-)&)�Zaddagf�af�*()+Ç),�lg�
�--&/�Zaddagf�af�*()1Ç*($�o`]j]Yk�lglYd�^mf\af_�oadd�^Ydd�Zq��)(&.�
Zaddagf�o`]f�l`]�aehY[l�g^�jaf_%^]f[]\�^mf\af_�^gj�hmZda[�`]Ydl`�ak�
]p[dm\]\&�:jaf_af_�lg_]l`]j�l`]�hj]\a[l]\�af[ge]�Yf\�]ph]f\almj]�
lj]f\k$�l`]�D?9�^gj][Yklk�Y�_Yh�g^��)*&,�Zaddagf�Z]lo]]f�^mf\af_�
Yf\�f]l�]ph]f\almj]�Zq�*()1Ç*(&�D?9�j]k]Yj[`�af\a[Yl]k�l`Yl�
af�eYfq�Yml`gjala]k�kYnaf_k�Yj]�klYjlaf_�lg�[ge]�^jge�k]jna[]�
j]\m[lagfk�jYl`]j�l`Yf�]^Õ[a]f[a]k$�Yf\�l`Yl�af�*()-Ç).$�kYnaf_k�
oadd�Z]�Y[`a]n]\�egj]�l`jgm_`�k]jna[]�j]\m[lagfk�l`Yf�l`jgm_`�
]^Õ[a]f[a]k&�L`]�^mf\af_�_Yh�Zq�l`]�]f\�g^�*()-Ç).�ak�^gj][Ykl�lg�
Z]��-&0�Zaddagf$�g^�o`a[`��)&1�Zaddagf�j]dYl]k�lg�Y\mdl�kg[aYd�[Yj]&

Jakc

Gml[ge] Gmlhml

Type of scope

Kmhhda]jÌk�Jakc :mq]jÌk�Jakc

Afhml

Page 81



4  November 2014

Government and economic news

L`]�Dg[Yd�?gn]jfe]fl�9kkg[aYlagf�Yf\�l`]�;`Yjl]j]\�Afklalml]�
^gj�HmZda[�>afYf[]�9[[gmflYf[q�`Yn]�lg_]l`]j�]klYZdak`]\�l`]�
Af\]h]f\]fl�;geeakkagf�gf�Dg[Yd�?gn]jfe]fl�>afYf[]$�o`a[`�ak�
[`Yaj]\�Zq�<YjjY�Kaf_`$�Y�hYjlf]j�af�=QÌk�?gn]jfe]fl�Yf\�HmZda[�
K][lgj�l]Ye&�L`]�;geeakkagf�Yaek�lg�Zmad\�gf�l`]�ogjc�g^�l`]�D?9�
Yf\�;AH>9$�o`g�af\ana\mYddq�k]l�gml�hjghgkYdk�^gj�hmZda[�k]jna[]�
j]^gje$�Yf\�oadd�[gfka\]j�Õn]�c]q�[`Ydd]f_]k2

Hjgeglaf_�][gfgea[�_jgol`�Yf\�afn]kle]fl�af�af^jYkljm[lmj]�

=fkmjaf_�km^Õ[a]fl�`gmkaf_�ak�hjgna\]\�af�]n]jq�hdY[]

Afl]_jYlaf_�l`]�`]Ydl`�Yf\�kg[aYd�[Yj]�kqkl]ek�lg�hjgegl]�
af\]h]f\]fl�danaf_$�af[dm\af_�hj]n]flaf_�mff][]kkYjq�
`]Ydl`�afl]jn]flagf

9[`a]naf_�Y�o]d^Yj]�Z]f]Õlk�kqkl]e�l`Yl�hjgegl]k�ogjc�Yf\�
hjgl][lk�l`]�nmdf]jYZd]

Kmhhgjlaf_�^Yeada]k�Yf\�\]n]dghaf_�qgmf_�dan]k�l`jgm_`�
]Yjdq�afl]jn]flagf

L`]�;geeakkagf�Yaek�lg�k`Yh]�l`]�\]ZYl]�gf�dg[Yd�_gn]jfe]fl�
ÕfYf[]$�Yf\�lg�afÖm]f[]�l`]�f]pl�_gn]jfe]fl&�Al�hmZdak`]\�Yf�
afl]jae�j]hgjl�af�G[lgZ]j$�Yf\�alk�ÕfYd�j][gee]f\Ylagfk�Yj]�\m]�
gml�af�]Yjdq�*()-&

L`]�afl]jae�j]hgjl�[gflYafk�l`]�^gddgoaf_�c]q�hgaflk2

L`]�f]]\�^gj�j]^gje�ak�mj_]fl�Yf\�[j]Yl]k�Yf�ghhgjlmfalq�
lg�]klYZdak`�Y�^mf\af_�kqkl]e�^gj�dg[Yd�_gn]jfe]fl�o`a[`�ak�
dYj_]dq�k]d^%km^Õ[a]fl&

;gmf[adk�`Yn]�Y�jgd]�lg�hdYq�af�Y\\j]kkaf_�l`]�[`jgfa[�
`gmkaf_�k`gjlY_]$�Yf\�k`gmd\�Z]�YZd]�lg�Zgjjgo�lg�afn]kl�af�
kg[aYd�`gmkaf_&

L`]�;geeakkagf�oadd�Z]�dggcaf_�Yl�l`]�ghlagf�g^�[j]Ylaf_�[]fljYd�
^mf\k�o`a[`�g^^]j�lg�eYl[`%^mf\�dg[Yd�hYjlf]jk`ah�[gfljaZmlagfk�
af�gj\]j�lg�kmhhgjl�]Yjdq�afl]jn]flagf�^gj�[`ad\j]f�Yf\�^Yeada]k&

DYj_]j�afn]kle]fl�af�ljYfk^gjeYlagf�ak�f]]\]\�^gj�l`]�\]dan]jq�
g^�afl]_jYl]\�[Yj]&

Page 82



5 November 2014  |

Accounting, Auditing and Governance

Future of Local Audit

9k�hYjl�g^�alk�[gfkmdlYlagf�gf�Dg[Yd�9m\al�J]_mdYlagfk�Ykkg[aYl]\�
oal`�l`]�Dg[Yd�9m\al�Yf\�9[[gmflYZadalq�9[l$�o`a[`�]f\]\�gf�)0�
Bmdq�*(),$�l`]�_gn]jfe]fl�ak�hjghgkaf_�lg�Zjaf_�^gjoYj\�l`]�\Yl]k�
^gj�l`]�Y[[gmflk�lg�Z]�ka_f]\�Yf\�[]jlaÕ]\�Zq�l`]�J]khgfkaZd]�
>afYf[aYd�G^Õ[]j$�l`]f�Yhhjgn]\�Yf\�hmZdak`]\$�^jge�+(�Bmf]�Yf\�
+(�K]hl]eZ]j�j]kh][lan]dq�lg�+)�EYq�Yf\�+)�Bmdq�j]kh][lan]dq&�
L`]q�hjghgk]�l`Yl�l`ak�[`Yf_]�ogmd\�lYc]�hdY[]�^jge�l`]�*()/Ç)0�
Y[[gmflk$�Zml�`gh]�l`Yl�Yml`gjala]k�oadd�egn]�lg�l`]�f]o�lae]lYZd]�
Yk�kggf�Yk�hgkkaZd]&

L`]�[gfkmdlYlagf�Ydkg�[gn]jk�[gdd][lan]�Ym\algj�hjg[mj]e]fl�Zq�
Y�kh][aÕ]\�h]jkgf&�Mf\]j�l`]�afl]f\]\�j]_mdYlagfk$�Yml`gjala]k�
ogmd\�Z]�YZd]�lg�ghl�af�lg�k][lgj%d]\�hjg[mj]e]fl�YjjYf_]e]flk$�
Yf\�`Yn]�Yf�Ym\algj�Yhhgafl]\�gf�l`]aj�Z]`Yd $̂�jYl`]j�l`Yf�
Yhhgaflaf_�l`]aj�gof�Ym\algj�dg[Yddq&�Mf\]j�l`]�\jY^l�j]_mdYlagfk$�
l`]�K][j]lYjq�g^�KlYl]�eYq�kh][a^q�l`]�9hhgaflaf_�H]jkgf$�Yf\�
eYq�kh][a^q�\a^^]j]fl�Yhhgaflaf_�h]jkgfk�^gj�\a^^]j]fl�_jgmhk�gj�
lqh]k�g^�Ym\al]\�Zg\a]k&

L`]�9m\al�;geeakkagf�`Yk�hmZdak`]\�Y�j]hgjl�gf�alk�Õf\af_k�
^jge�l`]�*()*Ç)+�_jYfl�[dYae�[]jlaÕ[Ylagf�hjg[]kk&�9k�o]dd�
Yk�Y\bmkle]flk�lg�[dYaek�ogjl`��)/&+�eaddagf$�Ym\algjk�akkm]\�
imYdaÕ[Ylagf�d]ll]jk�^gj�+.(�[dYaek�Yf\�j]lmjfk&�L`ak�af[dm\]\2

*--�@gmkaf_�:]f]Õl�kmZka\q�[dYaek$�/0��g^�l`]�lglYd$

--�L]Y[`]jkÌ�H]fkagfk�j]lmjfk$�+.��g^�l`]�lglYd$

+1�FYlagfYd�Fgf%\ge]kla[�JYl]k�j]lmjfk$�)*��g^�l`]�lglYd

>jge�*()+Ç),$�fgf%\ge]kla[�jYl]k�j]lmjfk�fg�dgf_]j�j]imaj]�
Ym\algj�[]jlaÕ[Ylagf&�L]Y[`]jkÌ�H]fkagfk�`Yk�\][a\]\�lg�eYc]�alk�
gof�[]jlaÕ[Ylagf�YjjYf_]e]flk�^gj�*()+Ç),$�`go]n]j�l`]�9m\al�
;geeakkagf�Yf\$�Y^l]j�EYj[`�*()-$�alk�km[[]kkgj�ljYfkalagfYd�
Zg\q�oadd�[gflafm]�lg�eYc]�[]jlaÕ[Ylagf�YjjYf_]e]flk�^gj�`gmkaf_�

Z]f]Õl�kmZka\q&�;gmf[ad�lYp�Z]f]Õl�oYk�j]hdY[]\�af�*()+Ç),�
oal`�dg[Yd�Yml`gjalq�jmf�k[`]e]k$�o`a[`�\g�fgl�j]imaj]�Ym\algj�
[]jlaÕ[Ylagf&�Gl`]j�_jYfl�hYqaf_�Zg\a]k�oadd�f]]\�lg�eYc]�l`]aj�
gof�YkkmjYf[]�YjjYf_]e]flk�^jge�*(),Ç)-�gfoYj\k&

L`]�hmjhgk]�g^�imYdaÕ[Ylagf�d]ll]jk�ak�lg�eYc]�Y�_jYfl�hYqaf_�Zg\q�
YoYj]�g^�akkm]k�oal`�Y�[dYae�gj�j]lmjf$�lqha[Yddq�akkm]k�^gj�o`a[`�
al�ak�fgl�hgkkaZd]�gj�[gkl%]^^][lan]�lg�imYfla^q�l`]�^mdd�ÕfYf[aYd�
aehY[l&�L`]�<]hYjle]fl�^gj�Ogjc�Yf\�H]fkagfk�akkm]\�Y�kmZka\q�
[aj[mdYj� @:�K,Ç*(),!�af�EYq�*(),$�j]al]jYlaf_�l`]�j]khgfkaZadala]k�
g^�dg[Yd�Yml`gjala]k�lg�]fkmj]�l`]aj�kmZka\q�[dYaek�Yj]2

;gehd]l]\�Y[[mjYl]dq�Yf\�af�Y[[gj\Yf[]�oal`�@:�kmZka\q�
_ma\Yf[]�Yf\�[aj[mdYjk

Kmhhgjl]\�Zq�kqkl]ek�g^�afl]jfYd�[gfljgd$�af[dm\af_�kqkl]ek�g^�
ÕfYf[aYd�[gfljgd�Yf\�afl]jfYd�Ym\al

;gehd]l]\�af�Y�lae]dq�eYff]j

Kmhhgjl]\�Zq�Y\]imYl]�ogjcaf_�hYh]jk

KmZb][l�lg�kmh]jnakagf�Yf\�j]na]o�Z]^gj]�[gehd]lagf�g^�l`]�
Yml`gjalqÌk�[]jlaÕ[Yl]

;]jlaÕ[Yl]�_an]f�Zq�Yf�YhhjghjaYl]�g^Õ[]j$�lqha[Yddq�l`]�
j]khgfkaZd]�ÕfYf[]�g^Õ[]j

L`]�[aj[mdYj�Ydkg�klYl]k�l`]�<]hYjle]flÌk�afl]flagf�lg�[gflY[l�Ydd�
dg[Yd�Yml`gjala]k�o`gk]�kmZka\q�[dYaek�`Yn]�Z]]f�imYdaÕ]\&�Al�oadd�
j]imaj]�Yf�gmldaf]�g^�l`]�Y[lagfk�lYc]f�lg�Y\\j]kk�l`]�akkm]k�jYak]\&�
Af�[Yk]k�oal`�j][mjj]fl�imYdaÕ[Ylagf�akkm]k$�l`]�<]hYjle]fl�oadd�
Ydkg�nakal�l`gk]�Yml`gjala]k&

Protecting the public purse: 25 years on

<]l][lagf�g^�^jYm\�af�=f_dYf\�af�*()+%),�Zq�;gmf[adk�Yf\�gl`]j�
dg[Yd�_gn]jfe]fl�Zg\a]k�oYk�Yl�alk�`a_`]kl�d]n]d�kaf[]�l`]�
j][gj\af_�g^�^jYm\�oYk�]klYZdak`]\�kge]�*-�q]Yjk�Y_g�Zq�l`]�9m\al�
;geeakkagf&�L`]�lglYd�Õ_mj]�g^��)00ef�oYk�Y�)(�^gd\�af[j]Yk]�gf�

Page 83



6  November 2014

Accounting, Auditing and Governance

l`]�Õjkl�j][gj\]\�Õ_mj]�af�)11(&�L`]�9m\al�;geeakkagf�oYk�Yf\�
ak�l`]�kgd]�hjgna\]j�g^�[gehj]`]fkan]�\YlY�gf�Ydd�lqh]k�g^�^jYm\�
\]l][l]\�Zq�dg[Yd�Yml`gjala]k&�L`ak�ak�\m]�lg�l`]�klYlmlgjq�hgo]jk�
l`]�;geeakkagf�`Yk$�lg�\]eYf\�l`Yl�dg[Yd�_gn]jfe]fl�Zg\a]k�
hjgna\]�km[`�\YlY&

L`]�9m\al�;geeakkagfÌk�;`YajeYf$�B]j]eq�F]oeYf�[gee]fl]\2�
ÌA�mj_]�l`]�_gn]jfe]fl�lg�eYf\Yl]�l`]�hjgnakagf�g^�^jYm\�\YlY�
^jge�Ydd�dg[Yd�Yml`gjala]k$�Y^l]j�l`]�;geeakkagfÌk�[dgkmj]$�lg�
]fkmj]�l`Yl�^mlmj]�j]hgjlk�Yj]�YZd]�lg�hjgna\]�Yk�[gehd]l]�Yf\�
Yml`gjalYlan]�Y�ha[lmj]�g^�^jYm\�\]l][lagf�Yk�ËHjgl][laf_�l`]�HmZda[�
Hmjk]Ì&�L`ak�ogmd\�`]dh�hj]k]jn]�l`]�`a_`�d]n]dk�g^�ljYfkhYj]f[q�
Yf\�Y[[gmflYZadalq�l`Yl�=f_dak`�[gmf[adk�[mjj]fldq�]p`aZal�af�l`]aj�
YhhjgY[`�lg�[gmfl]jaf_�^jYm\�Yf\�hj]n]fl�l`gk]�[gmf[adk�l`Yl�Yj]�
fgl�q]l�hdYqaf_�l`]aj�hYjl�af�l`]�Õ_`l�Y_Yafkl�^jYm\$�^jge�Ynga\af_�
hmZda[�k[jmlafq&Ì�

L`]�9m\al�;geeakkagf�`Yk�Ydkg�j]d]Yk]\�Y�[`][cdakl�^gj�]d][l]\�
e]eZ]jk$�\]ka_f]\�lg�`]dh�l`]e�YfYdqk]�l`]aj�[gmf[adÌk�j]kmdlk�
Yf\�Ykk]kk�`go�l`]�F>A�ak�afl]_jYl]\�aflg�l`]�[gmf[adÌk�hjg[]kk]k�
Yf\�[gmfl]j%^jYm\�hgda[a]k&�L`]�;geeakkagf�j][gee]f\k�l`Yl�
hmZda[�Ym\al]\�Zg\a]k�k`gmd\�[gfka\]j�o`]l`]j�al�ak�hgkkaZd]�lg�
eYc]�Z]ll]j�mk]�g^�eYl[`]k$�Yf\�mk]�F>A�eYl[`]k�af�[gfbmf[lagf�
oal`�eYl[`af_�k]jna[]k�^jge�gl`]j�hjgna\]jk&�Al�Ydkg�j][gee]f\k�
l`Yl�dg[Yd�Yml`gjala]k�k`gmd\�]fkmj]�l`]q�j]lYaf�km^Õ[a]fl�[YhYZadalq�
lg�afn]kla_Yl]�fgf%`gmkaf_�Z]f]Õl�^jYm\$�Y^l]j�l`]�afljg\m[lagf�g^�
l`]�Kaf_d]�>jYm\�Afn]kla_Ylagf�K]jna[]&

L`]�;geeakkagfÌk�>jYm\�L]Ye�oadd�Z]�egnaf_�lg�;AH>9�Yk�hYjl�g^�
l`]�[dgkmj]�g^�l`]�9m\al�;geeakkagf&

L`]�;YZaf]l�G^Õ[]�Yf\�l`]�9m\al�;geeakkagf�oadd�Z]�ogjcaf_�
lg_]l`]j�lg�]fkmj]�l`]�keggl`�ljYfk^]j�g^�l`]�F>A�^mf[lagfk�o`]f�
l`]�9m\al�;geeakkagf�[dgk]k�af�EYj[`�*()-&

Audit fees at a 25 year low as part of the Audit 
Commission’s legacy

Af�alk�dYkl�^mdd�q]Yj�g^�gh]jYlagf�Z]^gj]�Z]af_�g^Õ[aYddq�ogmf\�\gof�
gf�+)�EYj[`�*()-�l`]�9m\al�;geeakkagf�`Yk�Yffgmf[]\�l`Yl�al�ak�
j]\m[af_�Ym\al�^]]k�Zq�YhhjgpaeYl]dq��+(�eaddagf�Z]lo]]f�*()-%�
*()/&�A^�l`]�_gn]jfe]fl�\][a\]k�lg�]pl]f\�Yf\�dg[c�af�l`]�*()*�
Yf\�*(),�Ym\al�[gfljY[lk�mflad�*(*($�al�ak�]ph][l]\�l`Yl�l`]�lglYd�
nYdm]�g^�kYnaf_k�lg�dg[Yd�_gn]jfe]fl$�hgda[]$�Õj]�Yf\�F@K�Zg\a]k�
ogmd\�Z]�YhhjgpaeYl]dq��,,(ef&

;`YajeYf�g^�l`]�9m\al�;geeakkagf$�B]j]eq�F]oeYf�kYqk2�ËO]�
`Yn]�\jan]f�\gof�hja[]k�^gj�Ym\al�k]jna[]k$�k`goaf_�Y_Yaf�l`Yl�
Zmdc�hjg[mj]e]fl�ak�l`]�Z]kl�oYq�lg�eYaflYaf�Y�[geh]lalan]�eYjc]l�
Yf\�hjgna\]�lYphYq]jk�oal`�nYdm]�^gj�egf]q&�L`]�j]kmdlaf_�kYnaf_k�
Yj]�hYjl�g^�l`]�d]_Y[q�l`]�;geeakkagf�oadd�d]Yn]�Y^l]j�EYj[`�
*()-$�Yf\�oadd�Z]�]fbgq]\�Zq�dg[Yd�Yml`gjala]k�Yf\�F@K�Zg\a]k�^gj�
q]Yjk�Y^l]j�gmj�[dgkmj]&�>]]k�k`gmd\�Z]�hj]k]jn]\�Yl�l`ak�d]n]d�^gj�
*().Ç)/�Yf\�o]�`gh]�l`]�_gn]jfe]fl�oadd�lYc]�l`]�ghhgjlmfalq�o]�
`Yn]�k][mj]\�lg�dg[c�af�Yf\�]pl]f\�l`]�kYnaf_k�o]�`Yn]�Y[`a]n]\�
mh�lg�*(*(&Ì�

Af�Y\\alagf�lg�l`]�YZgn]�kYnaf_k$�l`]�;geeakkagf�Ydkg�afl]f\k�lg�
j]lmjf�YhhjgpaeYl]dq��.ef�Yk�Y�j]ZYl]�lg�Dg[Yd�?gn]jfe]fl�Yf\�
F@K�Zg\a]k�af�*(),%)-

9�ljYfkalagfYd�Zg\q$�HmZda[�K][lgj�9m\al�9hhgafle]flk�Daeal]\�
 HK99D!$�`Yk�Z]]f�]klYZdak`]\�Zq�l`]�Dg[Yd�?gn]jfe]fl�
9kkg[aYlagf�lg�gn]jk]]�l`]�eYfY_]e]fl�g^�l`]�9m\al�;geeakkagfÌk�
]pl]jfYd�Ym\al�[gfljY[lk�mflad�l`]q�]f\�af�*()/�gj�Yj]�hgkkaZdq�
]pl]f\]\�mflad�*(*(&�L`]�HK99D�oadd�Z]�j]khgfkaZd]�^gj�k]llaf_�
^]]k$�Yhhgaflaf_�Ym\algjk�Yf\�egfalgjaf_�l`]�imYdalq�g^�Ym\algjkÌ�
ogjc&�L`]q�oadd�Ydkg�Z]�j]khgfkaZd]�^gj�hmZdak`af_�l`]�;geeakkagfÌk�
NYdm]�^gj�Egf]q�HjgÕd]�lggd&

Page 84



7 November 2014  |

Regulation News

Open and Accountable Government

L`]�_gn]jfe]fl�`Yk�afljg\m[]\�Y�f]o�dYo�Yddgoaf_�l`]�hj]kk�Yf\�
hmZda[�lg�Õde�Yf\�\a_alYddq�j]hgjl� af[dm\af_�lo]]laf_�Yf\�Zdg__af_!�
^jge�Ydd�hmZda[�e]]laf_k�g^�dg[Yd�_gn]jfe]fl�Zg\a]k&�L`]k]�
jmd]k�oadd�Yhhdq�lg�Ydd�hmZda[�e]]laf_k�af[dm\af_�lgof�Yf\�hYjak`�
[gmf[adk$�Yf\�Õj]�Yf\�j]k[m]�Yml`gjala]k&�L`]�j]_mdYlagfk�Ydkg�_an]�
e]eZ]jk�g^�l`]�hj]kk�Yf\�hmZda[�ja_`lk�lg�k]]�af^gjeYlagf�j]dYl]\�
lg�ka_faÕ[Yfl�\][akagfk�eY\]�gmlka\]�e]]laf_k�Zq�g^Õ[]jk�Y[laf_�
mf\]j�_]f]jYd�gj�kh][aÕ[�\]d]_Yl]\�hgo]jk&

Whistleblowing 

L`]�<]hYjle]fl�^gj�:mkaf]kk$�AffgnYlagf�Yf\�Kcaddk� :AK!�`Yk�
j][]fldq�dYmf[`]\�Y�[gfkmdlYlagf$�o`a[`�[dgk]\�Yl�l`]�]f\�g^�
K]hl]eZ]j�*(),$�k]]caf_�na]ok�gf�l`]�hjY[la[Yd�aehd]e]flYlagf�
g^�Y�d]_Yd�hgo]j�j]imajaf_�hj]k[jaZ]\�h]jkgfk�lg�j]hgjl�YffmYddq�gf�
o`akld]Zdgoaf_�\ak[dgkmj]k&�:][Ymk]�g^�l`]�\mlq�g^�[gfÕ\]flaYdalq�
Zaf\af_�hj]k[jaZ]\�h]jkgfk$�Yf\�Y�dY[c�g^�d]_Yd�gZda_Ylagf�lg�
afn]kla_Yl]$�:AK�^gmf\�l`Yl�o`akld]%Zdgo]jk�\g�fgl�`Yn]�[gfÕ\]f[]�
l`Yl�l`]aj�j]hgjlk�Yj]�afn]kla_Yl]\&�L`]�<]hYjle]fl�ak�l`]j]^gj]�
afljg\m[af_�Y�j]hgjlaf_�j]imaj]e]fl�af�gj\]j�lg�]fkmj]�egj]�
kqkl]eYla[�hjg[]kk]k�Y[jgkk�hj]k[jaZ]\�Zg\a]k$�Yf\�lg�hjgna\]�
_j]Yl]j�j]YkkmjYf[]�lg�o`akld]%Zdgo]jk�l`Yl�l`]aj�j]hgjlk�Yj]�Z]af_�

Y[l]\�gf&�L`]�j]hgjlk�ogmd\�fgl�hjgna\]�kh][aÕ[�\]lYad�]fYZdaf_�
l`]�o`akld]%Zdgo]j�gj�l`]�gj_YfakYlagf�YZgml�o`a[`�l`]�j]hgjl�ak�
eY\]�lg�Z]�a\]flaÕ]\$�Zml�ogmd\�[gflYaf�egj]�_]f]ja[�af^gjeYlagf�
YZgml�l`]�fmeZ]j�g^�\ak[dgkmj]k�eY\]$�Yf\�l`]�[`YjY[l]jakla[k�
g^�l`gk]�\ak[dgkmj]k$�km[`�Yk�o`]l`]j�l`]q�j]imaj]\�^mjl`]j�
afn]kla_Ylagf�gj�j]^]jjYd�lg�Yf�Ydl]jfYlan]�Zg\q&

E]Yfo`ad]$�l`]�HYjdaYe]flYjq�;geeakkagf�gf�:Yfcaf_�KlYf\Yj\k�
 H;:K!�`Yk�hmZdak`]\�j][gee]f\Ylagfk�^gj�]f`Yf[af_�[gjhgjYl]�
ljYfkhYj]f[q$�_gn]jfYf[]�Yf\�afl]_jalq&�=d]n]f�g^�l`]�H;:KÌ�
j][gee]f\Ylagfk�j]dYl]�kh][aÕ[Yddq�lg�o`akld]Zdgoaf_&�L`]�
>afYf[aYd�;gf\m[l�9ml`gjalq� >;9!�Yf\�Hjm\]flaYd�J]_mdYlagf�
9ml`gjalq� HJ9!�`Yn]�af\a[Yl]\�l`]aj�afl]flagf�lg�Y\ghl�Ydd�]d]n]f�
Yf\�[gfk]im]fldq�o]�[Yf�]ph][l�[`Yf_]�lg�l`]�j]_mdYlgjq�
dYf\k[Yh]�af�l`]�f]Yj�^mlmj]&�O]�Ydkg�fgl]\�]Yjda]j$�l`Yl�
o`akld]Zdgoaf_�oYk�Yf�Yj]Y�jYak]\�Zq�l`]�H9;$�o`g�]eh`Ykak]\�
l`]�nYdm]�g^�]^^][lan]�o`akld]Zdgoaf_�hgda[a]k&

O`akld]Zdgoaf_�ak�l`]j]^gj]�[d]Yjdq�Y�c]q�Yj]Y�^gj�[gfka\]jYlagf$�^gj�
Zgl`�l`]�hmZda[�Yf\�hjanYl]�k][lgjk&

=Q�`Yk�hjg\m[]\�Y�o`akld]Zdgoaf_�Öq]j�lg�`]dh�qgm�lg�[gfka\]j�
qgmj�o`akld]Zdgoaf_�^jYe]ogjcÌk�]^^][lan]f]kk$�Yf\�o`]l`]j�qgmj�
[mdlmj]�]f[gmjY_]k�]ehdgq]]k�lg�jYak]�[gf[]jfk&

Page 85



8  November 2014

Key Questions for the Audit Committee

What questions should the Audit Committee be asking itself?

<g�o]�`Yn]�[d]Yj�daf]k�g^�j]khgfkaZadalq�^gj�[gfljY[l�eYfY_]e]fl7

@Yn]�o]�[gfka\]j]\�o`]l`]j�mk]�g^�gml[ge]�ZYk]\�[gfljY[lk�[gmd\�eala_Yl]�gmj�ËZmq]jkÌ�jakcÌ7

@Yn]�o]�j]khgf\]\�lg�l`]�im]klagfk�jYak]\�af�9hh]f\ap�*�g^�l`]�dYl]kl�F>A�j]hgjl7

@go�]^^][lan]�ak�gmj�o`akld]Zdgoaf_�hgda[q7

Page 86



9 November 2014  |

Find out more

EY Item Club: Autumn 2014 Forecast

Find EY Item Club’s Autumn 2014 forecast at:

`llh2''ooo&]q&[ge'HmZda[Ylagf'noDM9kk]lk'=Q%AL=E%;dmZ%
9mlmef%>gj][Ykl%*(),%^mdd%j]hgjl'�>AD='=Q%AL=E%;dmZ%9mlmef%
>gj][Ykl%*(),%^mdd%j]hgjl&h\^

Contracting out public services to the private sector 
Read the NAO report at:

`llh2''ooo&fYg&gj_&mc'oh%[gfl]fl'mhdgY\k'*()+'))')(*1.%(()%
:GGC%=K&h\^

a member of your engagement team.

Councils face a £5.8 billion shortfall in funding says LGA

Read the LGA’s press release, on what they have termed the 
‘£5.8bn funding black hole’ at 

`llh2''ooo&dg[Yd&_gn&mc'o]Z'_m]kl'ÕfYf[]'%'bgmjfYdW
[gfl]fl'-.')()0('.+(1(+,'F=OK&

Find the full report at:

`llh2''ooo&dg[Yd&_gn&mc'\g[me]flk')()0('-0-,..)'D),%
+,(#>mlmj]#^mf\af_#%#afalaYd#\jY^l&h\^')0-,,*(\%)[](%,1[-%
0-)-%(.*\[[[Y*[/(

Independent Commission on Local Government Finance

Read the Commission’s interim report at:

`llh2''ooo&dg[YdÕfYf[][geeakkagf&gj_'%'e]\aY'a[d_^'\g[me]flk'
d),-+.�*(afl]jaeWj]hgjlWo]ZWn*&h\^

Future of Local Audit

`llhk2''ooo&_gn&mc'_gn]jfe]fl'[gfkmdlYlagfk'dg[Yd%Ym\al%
j]_mdYlagfk

Read the full Audit Commission report at:

`llh2''ooo&Ym\al%[geeakkagf&_gn&mc'oh%[gfl]fl'
mhdgY\k'*(),'(.'Dg[Yd%_gn]jfe]fl%[dYaek%Yf\%j]lmjfk%ÕfYd%)/%
Bmf]%*(),&h\^

The DWP circular is also available at:

`llhk2''ooo&_gn&mc'_gn]jfe]fl'mhdgY\k'kqkl]e'mhdgY\k'
YllY[`e]flW\YlY'Õd]'+(1.)+'k,%*(),&h\^

Page 87



10  November 2014

Find out more

Audit fees at a 25 year low as part of the Audit 
Commission’s legacy

Read the full Audit Commission press release at:

`llh2''ooo&Ym\al%[geeakkagf&_gn&mc'*(),')('ohk^)-).hj'

Protecting the Public Purse: 25 years on

before its closure in March 2015 at:

`llh2''ooo&Ym\al%[geeakkagf&_gn&mc'oh%[gfl]fl'
mhdgY\k'*(),')('Hjgl][laf_%l`]%HmZda[%Hmjk]%*(),%>a_`laf_%
>jYm\%Y_Yafkl%Dg[Yd%?gn]jfe]fl%gfdaf]&h\^

Open and Accountable Government

The guide for press on attending and reporting meetings of  
local government is available at:

`llhk2''ooo&_gn&mc'_gn]jfe]fl'hmZda[Ylagfk'gh]f%Yf\%
Y[[gmflYZd]%dg[Yd%_gn]jfe]fl%hdYaf%]f_dak`%_ma\]

Whistleblowing

Feedback from the consultation is currently being analysed. 
The output from the consultation when it becomes available will 
be accessed via:

`llhk2''ooo&_gn&mc'_gn]jfe]fl'[gfkmdlYlagfk'o`akld]Zdgoaf_%
hj]k[jaZ]\%h]jkgfk%j]hgjlaf_%j]imaj]e]flk

`llh2''ooo&]q&[ge'HmZda[Ylagf'noDM9kk]lk'=QW%W
O`akld]Zdgoaf_W%W[`Yf_]WakW[geaf_'�>AD='=Q%o`akld]Zdgoaf_&h\^

For more information on how EY can help you enhance your 
existing whilstleblowing framework, speak to a member of your 
engagement team.

Page 88



Page 89



EY �t��9kkmjYf[]�t�LYp�t�LjYfkY[lagfk�t�9\nakgjq

About EY
=Q�ak�Y�_dgZYd�d]Y\]j�af�YkkmjYf[]$�lYp$�ljYfkY[lagf�Yf\�Y\nakgjq�k]jna[]k&�
L`]�afka_`lk�Yf\�imYdalq�k]jna[]k�o]�\]dan]j�`]dh�Zmad\�ljmkl�Yf\�[gfÕ\]f[]�
af�l`]�[YhalYd�eYjc]lk�Yf\�af�][gfgea]k�l`]�ogjd\�gn]j&�O]�\]n]dgh�
gmlklYf\af_�d]Y\]jk�o`g�l]Ye�lg�\]dan]j�gf�gmj�hjgeak]k�lg�Ydd�g^�
gmj�klYc]`gd\]jk&�Af�kg�\gaf_$�o]�hdYq�Y�[jala[Yd�jgd]�af�Zmad\af_�Y�Z]ll]j�
ogjcaf_�ogjd\�^gj�gmj�h]ghd]$�^gj�gmj�[da]flk�Yf\�^gj�gmj�[geemfala]k&

=Q�j]^]jk�lg�l`]�_dgZYd�gj_YfarYlagf$�Yf\�eYq�j]^]j�lg�gf]�gj�egj]$�g^�l`]�
e]eZ]j�Õjek�g^�=jfkl���Qgmf_�?dgZYd�Daeal]\$�]Y[`�g^�o`a[`�ak�Y�k]hYjYl]�
d]_Yd�]flalq&�=jfkl���Qgmf_�?dgZYd�Daeal]\$�Y�MC�[gehYfq�daeal]\�Zq�
_mYjYfl]]$�\g]k�fgl�hjgna\]�k]jna[]k�lg�[da]flk&�>gj�egj]�af^gjeYlagf�YZgml�
gmj�gj_YfarYlagf$�hd]Yk]�nakal�]q&[ge&

=jfkl���Qgmf_�DDH
L`]�MC�^aje�=jfkl���Qgmf_�DDH�ak�Y�daeal]\�daYZadalq�hYjlf]jk`ah�j]_akl]j]\�af�=f_dYf\�Yf\�OYd]k�
oal`�j]_akl]j]\�fmeZ]j�G;+(((()�Yf\�ak�Y�e]eZ]j�^aje�g^�=jfkl���Qgmf_�?dgZYd�Daeal]\&

=jfkl���Qgmf_�DDH$�)�Egj]�Dgf\gf�HdY[]$�Dgf\gf$�K=)�*9>&

¡�*(),�=jfkl���Qgmf_�DDH&�HmZdak`]\�af�l`]�MC&�
9dd�Ja_`lk�J]k]jn]\&

=<�())-

),1)+)+&af\\� MC!�))'),&�9jlogjc�Zq�;j]Ylan]�K]jna[]k�?jgmh�<]ka_f&

Af�daf]�oal`�=QÌk�[geeale]fl�lg�eafaeak]�alk�aehY[l�gf�l`]�]fnajgfe]fl$�l`ak�\g[me]fl�
`Yk�Z]]f�hjafl]\�gf�hYh]j�oal`�Y�`a_`�j][q[d]\�[gfl]fl&

Af^gjeYlagf�af�l`ak�hmZda[Ylagf�ak�afl]f\]\�lg�hjgna\]�gfdq�Y�_]f]jYd�gmldaf]�g^�l`]�kmZb][lk�[gn]j]\&�
Al�k`gmd\�f]al`]j�Z]�j]_Yj\]\�Yk�[gehj]`]fkan]�fgj�km^^a[a]fl�^gj�eYcaf_�\][akagfk$�fgj�k`gmd\�al�Z]�
mk]\�af�hdY[]�g^�hjg^]kkagfYd�Y\na[]&�=jfkl���Qgmf_�DDH�Y[[]hlk�fg�j]khgfkaZadalq�^gj�Yfq�dgkk�Yjakaf_�
^jge�Yfq�Y[lagf�lYc]f�gj�fgl�lYc]f�Zq�Yfqgf]�mkaf_�l`ak�eYl]jaYd&

]q&[ge'mc

Page 90



AG10 

Division(s): N/A 

 
 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 14 JANUARY 2014 
 

REPORT OF THE AUDIT WORKING GROUP (AWG) 
 

The Audit Working Group met on 11 December 2014  
 
The meeting was attended by: 
Dr Geoff Jones – Chairman; Cllr Lovatt; Cllr R Smith; Cllr N Hards; Lorna Baxter, 
and Ian Dyson. 
 
Part meeting only: AWG14.27 Steve Thomas; AWG14.28 Rikke Hansen. 
 
Apologies: Cllr Wilmshurst; Peter Clark 
 

Matters to report: 

At the meeting the Chief Internal Auditor tabled an additional paper, not on the 
agenda, to bring to the attention of the AWG two emerging issues. The first matter 
was to provide a confidential update on an on-going investigation; the second issue 
was regarding the Adult Social Care (ASC) IT System project: 

The system will replace both Swift (the current ASC client database) and Abacus 
(the current client finance system). The implementation team has been tasked to 
deliver by May 2015 the replacement to Swift and Abacus. It is planned that further 
functional requirements and improvements, driven by the Adult Services 
Improvement Programme (ASIP), Lean project, and Care Bill considerations will fall 
into Phase 2 and 3 planned from October 2015.  
 
Internal Audit has undertaken an initial review of the project governance 
arrangements and the current status of the implementation of the new ASC I.T. 
system. A number of issues/observations have been highlighted to both Deputy 
Directors, including the new project sponsor for the implementation (Kate Terroni). 
These issues/observations included the lack of a clearly defined and detailed scope 
for the project; work streams are not all formalised, and the detail and monitoring of 
what each work stream is covering and delivering was unclear; there was no formal 
structure to project team meetings; project documentation, including the 
implementation plan, was out of date and not reflecting what the Board has decided 
will now be delivered; and, risk registers and issues logs were not up-to-date or 
complete.  
 
It is understood that the work is underway to address the project governance issues; 
however the Group was very concerned at the lack of governance around this key 
project. It is expecting the outcome from this project to deliver an efficient and 
effective system that addresses previously reported control issues, and data quality 
issues and was not assured from the update that this will be achieved.  
 
This project is already on the Audit and Governance Committee forward plan for 
quarterly progress reports, but the AWG wishes to highlight to the Committee that at 
present this is a significant concern. 

Agenda Item 10

Page 91



        
   

 
 

  

AWG 14.27 & 14.28 Review of CEF and EE Risk Management Process 

The Group had difficulty in reviewing the detail in the actual risk registers both 
electronically and the paper versions. The Chief Internal Auditor agreed to look at 
how the detail can be presented at future meetings. 

These sessions focussed on the process for populating the risk registers; internal 
reviews within the Directorates; risk escalation; and, risk scoring including how the 
increasing or decreasing of risk scoring is approved.  

The Group was content with the risk management process within CEF and EE.   

 

AWG14.29 Risk Management Update 

The Group was content with the report. The following are points to note: 

A key priority for CCMT currently is managing the forecast overspend and on-going 
financial pressures. 

The strategic risk register is to be refreshed during Q4 and is to be presented to the 
AWG at June 2015 meeting. 

The Risk Management Strategy is to be reviewed during Q4, with support from 
Zurich risk management specialists.  

 

AWG 14.30 Work Programme   

The updated work programme is appended to this report. There are two additions: 

The Group requested an update report from the Service Manager Business 
Development & Fleet Management following her presentation on the Integrated 
Transport Unit at the November AWG meeting. This has been provisionally 
scheduled for April 2015, subject to the officer's availability. 

The Council's Strategic Risk Register is now scheduled to be presented to the Group 
in June 2015.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Committee is RECOMMENDED to note the report.   
 
 
LORNA BAXTER 
Chief Finance Officer 
 
Contact: Officer: Ian Dyson, Chief Internal Auditor  Tel 01865 323875 

ian.dyson@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 92



        
   

 
 

 
AUDIT WORKING GROUP 
TIMETABLE AND WORK PROGRAMME 2014/15 
 
 
12 February 2015 - 14:00 - 16:00 

§ Internal Audit Report - Ian Dyson 
§ Risk Management Report - Ian Dyson 
§ Draft Work Programme 2015/16 - Ian Dyson 
§ Review of AWG Terms of Reference - Ian Dyson 
§ SCS Risk Register - Steve Thomas 
§ Public Health Risk Register - Alan Rouse 

 
09 April 2015 - 14:00 - 16:00 
§ Indicative Annual Governance Statement actions for 2015/16 - David Illingworth  
§ Update on Residential and Home Support Payments - Kate Terroni / Andrew 

Colling 
§ Internal Audit Progress Report - Ian Dyson 
§ C EX Risk Register - Eira Hale 
§ Oxfordshire Fire & Rescue Service Risk Register - Simon Belcher 
§ Whistleblowing Incidents 2014/15 - Peter Clark 
§ Update on ITU - Alexandra Bailey 
 

 
Wednesday 22 April 2015 13:00 - 14:00 
 
§ Private meeting with Ernst and Young - 22 April 2015 
 

 
11 June 2015 - 14:00 - 16:00 

§ Draft Annual Governance Statement  
§ Internal Audit Report - Ian Dyson 
§ Draft Internal Audit Report - Ian Dyson 
§ Risk Management Report - Ian Dyson 
§ Strategic Risk Register - Ian Dyson 

 
 
 
Note - Private meeting with Chief Internal Audit date to be determined.  
 
 
 

Page 93



Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank



 
06/01/2015 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 19 November 
WORK PROGRAMME 2015 

 
 
 
2015 
 
Wed 14 January 2015 
Treasury Management Strategy (Lorna Baxter) 
Internal Audit Plan – 2014/15 Progress Report and Quarter 4 Plan (Ian Dyson) 
Review of the Process for Reporting on the Effectiveness of the System of 
InternalAudit (Ian Dyson) 
Corporate Leads 
Audit & Governance Committee – Draft Work Programme 2014/15 
 
Wed 25 February 2015 
 
SCS LEAN and IT system update 
Audit Committee Annual Report to Council 2014 
Internal Audit Services – Internal Audit Strategy & Annual Plan 
Council request to look at Demographics of Council. 
 
 
Standing Items: 
 

• Audit Working Group Reports 
(Ian Dyson) 
 

• Audit & Governance Committee Work Programme – update/review 
(Committee Officer/Chairman/relevant officers) 
 

• Future of Adult Social Care in Oxfordshire – Regular Progress update on 
Implementation Plan (Quarterly) 

 
 
Other matters 
 
Risk Management Strategy (same as Annual Report?) 
Risk Management Annual Report (Ian Dyson) 
Appeals & Tribunals sub-Committee – details of recommendations resulting from 
appeals to the Home to School Transport Appeals, and Pension Benefits sub-
Committee at which issues of dismissal and redundancy were decided, 
Partnerships – Progress Report 
Corporate Leads – remaining 
 
 

Agenda Item 11

Page 95



Page 96

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	6 Treasury Management Strategy
	AG_JAN1415R02

	7 Internal Audit Update, including  2014/15 Plan Progress Report
	8 AGS Actions Progress Report
	9 Ernst & Young
	10 Audit Work Group Report
	11 Committee Work Programme 2015

